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1 SNOWDONIA

16 day itinerary

Many years of travelling, and thoroughly enjoying, the States and National Parks of 
the USA, and also National Parks in Britain, have provided a good insight into the essential 
features to see and things to do.  There are so many books to read, and so much tourist 
information to absorb on arrival at each destination, that precious time can be lost in trying to 
discover the most advantageous points of interest.  This itinerary sets out in clear bulleted lists
just what to see and do.

There is no preoccupation with giving advice about the cheapest or best airline, car-
hire company, restaurant, or hotel.  You are free to choose any of these, without any reference 
to the itinerary.  No inducements or enticements are taken from organisations trying to boost 
their pro4ts.  This itinerary highlights facts and legends (where appropriate), to help you get 
the best out of your time.

This itinerary has been prepared with various assumptions, and attempts to provide a 
well-researched route, without the need to instruct travellers in the art of travelling.  This 
means that there has been no attempt to give tiny details, such as how to read a map, or where 
to 4nd all speci4c places, unless the signposts are not clear enough.  Many places are well 
signposted.

Many of the places in this itinerary can be visited at any time of the year.  However, 
we have assumed that the itinerary will be taken by car during the normal tourist months, and 
so there will be no problems with any opening times of houses, museums, or hotels, etc.  The 
walks suggested are suitable for the summer months, between about May and September.

Accommodation is usually easy to 4nd, and on most occasions it is not necessary to 
book in advance.  However, if you wish to stay in a particularly popular area, or time of the 
year, then you are strongly advised to book well in advance.  Campsites are often available.  
There are some small hotels in the country areas, and larger ones in the towns.  In the country 
areas of Britain, it is normal to stay in private homes providing 'Bed & Breakfast', and it has 
been our experience that these provide cheap, comfortable accommodation in relaxed 
surroundings.  We have stayed in modern homes, and old cottages and farmhouses - one was 
at least 1,300 years old, with breakfast served in an old chapel!

Day numbers allow for one day of travelling at each end of the itinerary.  Most 
people will need these travelling days.

Although the days are marked as Day 1, Day 2, etc., there is no reason why you 
cannot spend two or more days at one of the overnight stops.  You may have relatives in the 
area, or just wish to lengthen the tour a little, to accommodate some aspect you 4nd 
particularly interesting, or do some shopping.  Just alter the day number, and carry on at your 
own pace.

Mileages on each day should be taken as being rather approximate,  depending on
how many features you visit along the route.  Some days you may cover fewer miles, some
days you may cover more - but the overall distance should be about right.

Copyright © 2004 - 2022 itforit.com.  All Rights Reserved
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OVERVIEW

! Snowdonia National Park was established in 1951.  It is the second 
largest National Park in Britain, after the Lake District, covering an area
of 823 square miles.

! It is completely within the county of Gwynedd.
! Prior to local government reorganisation in 1996, it was within

Caernarfonshire and Merionethshire.
! This itinerary does travel very slightly into the neighbouring 

county of Conwy, for some particularly interesting places.
! There is a very strong sense of nationalism, with about 70% of the 

Snowdonia residents regarding Welsh as their mother tongue.
! Generally, signs are in Welsh and English, with the Welsh 4rst.

! It is named after the mountain of Snowdon, which is in the northern 

area of the National Park.  The Welsh name, Yr Wyddfa ("uh-wuth-
va"), means 'grave' or 'tumulus'.

! In Welsh, the National Park is called Eryri ("e-roo-ree"), meaning

'the place of eagles', although eagles no longer live here.
! In 1230, Llywelyn the Great called himself 'Prince of 

Aberffraw and Lord of Snowdon', since when the area has 
been know as Snowdonia.

! Aberffraw is on Anglesey, and was an administrative 
centre in 1230.

! The name of Snowdon is thought to come from the Gaelic 
'snaudune', meaning 'snowy mountains'.

! Formation of the landscape  
! Snowdonia can be very simplistically divided into three areas.

! The northern volcanic mountains, e.g. Snowdon.
! The central 'Harlech Dome' of sedimentary rocks.
! The southern volcanic mountains, e.g. Cadair Idris.

! Sedimentary layers of rock were 4rst laid down, including 
slates, sandstones and grits.

! Layers of igneous rocks were then forced up through faults in 
the 4rst layers and formed the mountains.

! The central 'Harlech Dome' area became uplifted, forming the 
mountains of slate - leaving the igneous mountains to the north
and south.

! Glacial action scoured the landscape, forming U-shaped river 
valleys.

! The glaciers of the last Ice Age disappeared about 10,000 
years ago.

! Information Centres   are located in all the larger towns, and in 

various smaller centres.

! Wildlife   is in abundance, especially near the lakes and estuaries.
! There are 17 National Nature Reserves (more than any other 

British National Park), and 45 Sites of Special Scienti4c 
Interest (SSSI).

! Pine marten, otter, chough and red kite may be seen.
! Feral goats live in the wild, mountainous areas.
! The rare Snowdon Beetle (Chrysolina cerealis)has many 

colours, and only lives in a small area around Snowdon.
! The rare Snowdon Lily (Lloydia serotina) grows only in a few 

places at high altitudes in Snowdonia.

continued......
Copyright © 2004 - 2022 itforit.com.  All Rights Reserved
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!"#$"%#& (continued)

Humans in Snowdonia

! Welsh Language   needs to be studied separately.  There are a few 

basic pronunciation rules to follow, although there are many mutations. 
Pronunciations are generally given only once - in the order of the 
itinerary.

! ae and au - are pronounced like 'iy'
! ch - is pronounced softly like 'kh' (as in German 'ich')
! dd - is pronounced like 'th'
! ei - is pronounced like 'ay'
! eu and oe - are pronounced like 'oy'
! f - is pronounced like 'v'
! ll - is pronounced like 'hl'
! u - is pronounced like 'ee' or 'i'
! w - is pronounced like 'oo'
! y - is pronounced like 'ee', 'e' or 'u' when within a word
! y and yr - are pronounced like 'uh', when a separate word

! Humans   have lived in Snowdonia for at least the last 12,000 years.
! There are burial mounds dating from up to 5,000 years ago.
! The Romans arrived about 60 AD, from where they struggled 

to conquer Anglesey - but eventually managed in 78 AD.
! About 400 AD, the Romans left and the area returned to being 

small farming communities.

! Mining   for lead has taken place for about 2,000 years.
! Copper has been mined, with some success.
! Gold, silver and other precious metals have been mined, but 

not in any major quantities.

! Slate   was a boom industry during the 1800s.
! See the section about 'Slate Mining / Quarrying in Snowdonia', 

on page 15.

! Local trades   such as candle-maker, rope maker, wheelwright, and 
blacksmith have all been important over the centuries, particularly at the 
height of the slate era.  However, these have now largely disappeared.

! Mills   harnessed the power of water for centuries.  In earlier centuries, 

the power was used to grind corn and animal feed.
! From the 1770s, the power was used to run machinery in 

textile mills, particularly for wool spinning and weaving.

! Reservoirs   have been created in the valleys.
! They are used to capture water for local towns, and also to 

provide a head of water for hydro-electric schemes.

! Farming   still takes place over much of the area, mainly with sheep and

cattle.  It is a most important part of the area's industry.
! Before sheep were introduced, goats and cattle were the main 

source of income for medieval hill farmers. 
! Goats are still considered to be an asset.  They nimbly graze on

dangerous areas, and prevent sheep from venturing there.
! It is thought that goats were originally responsible for grazing 

away any potential trees on the mountain slopes.
! Crops are grown on the better soils in the valley bottoms.
! Dry stone walls were mostly constructed during the Enclosure 

Movement of the 1700s and 1800s, to take advantage of the 
wool industry.

! Monasteries   were established in valley bottoms from the 600s AD.
! During the 1100s monks were given much land by Llywelyn 

the Great to establish monasteries.
! Most were overthrown by Edward I in the 1280s.  The rest 

were dissolved during the 1530s, under the orders of Henry 
VIII.

continued......
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!"#$"%#& (continued)

Humans in Snowdonia (continued)

! Castle-building   was a major occupation in the 1100s and 1200s.
! In the 1100s, the Welsh were building castles to keep the 

English out.
! In the 1200s, the English were building castles to intimidate 

the Welsh and force them into submission.

! Packhorses routes   and drovers' tracks had been followed for 

centuries, until turnpike roads were constructed in the 1700s.
! Tramways were constructed during the 1700s for slate to be 

transported from the quarries to the quayside.  These later 
became the narrow-gauge railways.

! Railways for other commercial purposes were constructed in 
the area during the 1800s, following the valleys and coastline.

! Coastal activities   were similar to anywhere else, with small amounts

of 4shing.
! Ship-building was undertaken at Barmouth and Aberdy4.
! Ports were constructed on the Menai Strait and river estuaries 

to export slate.

! Periods of history   can be very confusing, and are often vague, with 

many periods overlapping, and differing between many parts of the 
world.  The following is a simpli4ed glossary of British history.

! Stone Age   is divided into three separate ages.

! Palaeolithic   was from about 2·5 million years ago, 
to about 12,000 years ago (10,000 BC).

! Mesolithic   was from about 12,000 years ago, to 
about 5,500 years ago (10,000 BC to 3,500 BC).

! Neolithic / Megalithic   was from about 5,500 years 
ago, to about 4,000 years ago (3,500 BC to 2,000 
BC).

! Bronze Age   was from about 4,000 years ago, to about 2,700 
years ago (2,000 BC to 700 BC).

! Iron Age   was from about 2,700 years ago, to about 2,000 

years ago (700 BC to 43 AD).

! Romans   were in occupation from 43 AD to about 400 AD.

! Middle Ages   were from about the 400s AD to 1485.

! Early Middle Ages   were from about the 400s AD 

to 1066.

! Dark Ages   were a period of the Middle Ages, from 

about 650 AD to 850 AD.

! Medieval   was a period of the Middle Ages, from 

1066 to 1485.

! Tudor   was during the reigns of Henry VII, Henry VIII and 

Elizabeth I from 1485 to 1603.

! Stuart   was during the reigns of James I, Charles I, Charles II, 
William III & Mary II and Anne from 1603 to 1714

! Georgian   was during the reigns of the four Georges I to IV 

(1714-1830).

! Victorian   was during the reign of Victoria (1837-1901).

! Edwardian   was during the reign of Edward VII (1901-1910).

continued......
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(continued)

USEFUL INFORMATION
Walking

! This is the most popular activity, with over 2,000 miles of public footpaths 
bridleways, providing many long and short walks.

! Most of the land is privately owned, and so it is necessary to walk only on the 
way-marked paths.

! There are also some 'permissive paths' and 'access areas', which cross private 
land.  To ensure that they do not become legal footpaths, some close for one day 
each year - usually in the winter.

Other activities
! Various activities are available including cycling, golf, 4shing, rock climbing, 

pony trekking, hang-gliding and paragliding.
! There are over 1,500 recognised rock climbing routes.

Time to visit
! This itinerary has been created on the assumption that you will visit during the 

months of May to October.  At other times, some of the attractions will not 
necessarily be open.  However, the beauty of the landscape is still available, and 
can be just as enjoyable.

Travelling information
! Maps  

! It has been our experience that the !$'()(*#+,-$"#.+/)('$)(0#$+
maps are the best to use.  The scale of these is 1:50,000, which is about 
1·25 inches to 1 mile.

! They are available throughout Britain, at bookshops, and similar 
outlets.  They are also available from various internet 'stores'.

! The recommended maps for this itinerary are:

! 1-23#$+445  Snowdon / Yr Wyddfa.

! 1-23#$+446  Denbigh & Colwyn Bay / Dinbych a Bae Colwyn.

! 1-23#$+478  Porthmadog & Dolgellau.

! 1-23#$+475  Bala & Lake Vyrnwy / Y Bala a Llyn Efyrnwy.

! 1-23#$+495  Aberystwyth & Machynlleth.

! Map grid references  
! Every town and village, etc. in the itinerary has a map grid reference.  

This has been calculated using the above maps.  It is a very simple way 
to pin-point a place.

! All Ordnance Survey maps are covered by a series of horizontal and 
vertical grid lines, spaced 1 kilometre apart.

! Grid references are 6 4gure numbers, e.g. 722174, on map number 124.
! To 4nd where this grid reference is, look along the bottom of the map 

for a number 72, and then the next 4gure (2) indicates how many tenths 
to move further right, i.e. two-tenths of that box.

! Then look along the side of the map for a number 17, and then 
the next 4gure (4) indicates how many tenths to move further 
up i.e. four-tenths of that box.

! Where your two imaginary lines meet, i.e. 722 and 174, this is 
at a place called 'Clogwyn'.

! Distances and directions  
! Every town and village, etc. in the itinerary has an approximate distance

from the previous place, together with the approximate direction.
! The distance is in a straight line on a map.  This is provided so 

that you can easily 4nd each place, before you start to travel.  
The distance is not necessarily the distance along the road - it 
is almost certainly very much longer!

! It is worth noting that the altar is at the east end of a church, and on 
upright headstones, the inscriptions generally face east.

continued......
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USEFUL INFORMATION (continued)

Travelling information (continued)

! Driving information  
! If you are hiring a vehicle, then you should read the hire agreement 

carefully, in order that you do not contravene any of the conditions of 
hire.  Many parking areas are not paved, and it is suggested that driving 
on this type of surface may well be acceptable to the hire company.  
However, !"!"#!" cannot be held responsible for varying conditions of 
hire companies.

! The total distance you will travel on this itinerary will be about 750 
miles.

! Conventional 'Fly-Drive' types of itineraries often state just the
minimum distances, which do not allow for the normal extra 
bits of driving - like going out for a meal, going shopping, 
missing the exit off the road, etc.

! !"!"#!" believes the total will be a reasonable judgement of your

actual mileage, based on:
! Our own experiences. 
! The assumption that you go to many of the places, but

not all of them.

Admission Information
! Admission charges  

! Nearly every place makes an admission charge.
! Exceptions to this are government establishments.
! It is worth looking for coupons giving discounts on admission prices.  

You will 4nd these at Tourist Information Centres, hotels, etc.  If none 
is on display, it is still worth asking.

! The National Trust  
! This is Britain's leading conservation charity.  It is not dependent on the

government for funding, but relies on voluntary contributions to care 
for the countryside and buildings in its custody, in perpetuity.

! Membership of the National Trust provides certain bene4ts, including 
'free' entry to properties.

! On this itinerary, there are many places owned by The National Trust,
including about 12% of the land.  For most places, there is no charge, 
but others have entry fees.  In any year, the membership cost would 
be more than the separate entry fees, and therefore it is not a good 
'investment'.  However, if other National Trust properties are to be 
visited at another time, then it may be worth considering.

! Details of the above are available from National Trust properties, or by 
telephoning 0870-458-4000, or visit www.nationaltrust.org.uk.

! Citizens of the USA may consider joining The Royal Oak Foundation.
! The membership dues are tax-deductible (it is a '501-c-3' 

charity), and it provides many bene4ts, including 'free' entry to
properties.

! Telephone (in the USA): 1-800-913-6565

! CADW - Heritage in Wales  
! This organisation conserves buildings, as does The National Trust, but 

generally the buildings are not complete, such as old castles.  It is the 
duty of this organisation to stabilise the properties, to prevent any 
further decay, and allow public access.

! Bene4ts are available to members of CADW, as with The National 
Trust.

continued......
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USEFUL INFORMATION (continued)

Admission Information (continued)

! Great British Heritage Pass  
! This is for overseas visitors only, on production of a valid passport.  

The pass is available in various 'time lengths'.
! For a fee, this provides 'free' entry to many properties around the United

Kingdom, including those belonging to The National Trust, CADW, 
plus many more organisations, and also private properties.

! It is good value, if you are going to visit more properties than in this 
itinerary.  For this itinerary alone, it is not a good 'investment'.

! More details are at www.visitbritain.com
! It is available from:

! Most of the large Tourist Information Centres, in cities, ports 
and airports.

! Britain Visitor Centre, 1 Lower Regent Street, London.

What to see and do
! This itinerary is essentially based on Snowdonia, with various extra places added

around its perimeter.
! Conwy and Caernarfon are included, as they have such an important 

and interesting history.
! Other small towns, just outside the National Park boundary, are 

included, as their history is part of the heritage of the area.
! Penrhyn Castle and Bodnant Garden are National Trust properties, and 

are considered to be very worthwhile to visit.
! It is not expected that everything in this itinerary will be undertaken.

! It is impossible to see everything in Snowdonia in 14 days!
! There are about 2,000 years of history, and a large area of land to cover.

! !"!"#!" recommends that you select the day's activities from the choices described,

and allocate time accordingly.

! Essential places to visit are in bold and underlined.

! Interesting places, such as towns and villages, walks, etc. are just underlined.  

As many of these places as possible should be included in the itinerary, in order 
to achieve maximum enjoyment, together with understanding of the history and 
culture of the area.

! $%&&'()'*+,-./(+-#'+01+0)-.02(3++40()-12'(+-#'+-.,-5(+()-)'*+!"#+)6'+)")-.+#')%#1+
"#+.""73

! 8-./(+(%&&'()'*+-#'+("9'+"!+)6'+'-(0'#+"1'(:+,0)6+&""*+;0',(+"#+
7-#)02%.-#+01)'#'()3

! <)+0(+#'2"99'1*'*+)"+*"+-(+9-15+,-./(+-(+7"((0=.':+)"+&')+)6'+9"()+"%)+
"!+)60(+0)01'#-#53

! Tourist Information Centres are always worth visiting.
! They give a very good overview of the area, together with its history, 

culture, geology, etc.
! !"!"#!" does not presume to be a better authority than Tourist 

Information Centres.
! !"!"#!" itineraries prepare you for a place of interest, and suggest the 

essential items to see and do.
! All places have rules about damage to the environment, litter, camping, and so 

on.  Please ensure that you abide by these regulations.

Copyright © 2004 - 2022 itforit.com.  All Rights Reserved
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A brief political history of Snowdonia

The political history of Snowdonia is an important part of the Snowdonia itinerary.  
These notes will help to understand its signi4cance, and the effects on the scenery and culture 
of the area.

! Before the fair-haired Celts arrived in Britain, there were dark-skinned 
people living in the area now called Snowdonia, who may have descended 
from the 4rst peoples in the area - believed to be up 250,000 years ago.

! Between about 700 BC and 500 BC, the @#=?; arrived from around northern 

Italy, and the so-called Iron Age forts started to appear on the high ground.
! The A>2)(;  arrived in Britain in about 43 AD, and slowly moved to 

suppress the Celts - or the Gauls, as the Romans called them.  They 
eventually built their Segontium fort at Caernarfon, in 77 AD.

! The Romans managed to suppress the Celts, or push them out, and stayed 
until about 400 AD - by which time, there was a mixture of nations, 
including many Europeans, who came as part of the Roman army.

! The mixture of peoples continued to live reasonably peacefully for about 
600 years, during which time they were converted to Christianity.

! Wales was divided into various 'kingdoms', ruled by families of 
monarchs, handing down their titles within each family - much the 
same as today's royal families.

! They tended to keep the same laws, spoke the same language, but 
kept themselves separate from each other.

! They lived in small farming communities, and generally lived 
peaceful lives - although Scandinavians, Saxons, and Angles all 
tried to conquer the area, but with limited success, because of the 
dif4cult terrain.

! In contrast, the English had been taken over by the 1>$2)(;  in 1066, led by

William the Conqueror.  Their culture was more forceful and well 
organised.  They began to push into Wales.

! The Welsh realised their peaceful existence was at risk, and pushed the 
Norman English back, and over about the next 100 years, the English were 
generally kept out of Wales by great Welsh rulers.

! From 1195, Llywelyn ap Iorwerth - '/=.&#=.(+?B#+C$#)?' - ruled over the 

northwestern area of Wales, including Snowdonia.
! He organised all the other Welsh rulers into one political party, and

became their leader.
! Welsh society was reasonably civilised, and generally depended on 

public fellowship for law and order.
! He built small forts - mostly as safe havens in times of attack 

from the English or small minority groups.
! In contrast, large forti4cations of the Normans and English 

were necessary, as their rule was controlled with more force.
! He tried to be strong with King John of England, but generally 

failed.
! He then success fully negotiated with England, and married Joan, 

the daughter of King John.
! He died in 1240, aged about 67.

continued......
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D>=%?%*)=+B%;?>$. (continued)

! From 1240, Llywelyn the Great's son, E)<.'' , ruled - but he was not a 

strong leader.
! His brother, Grif4th, opposed Dafydd's policies and was 

imprisoned by Dafydd.  Grif4th was eventually sent to the Tower 
of London, where he died whilst trying to escape.

! In 1246, Dafydd died - it is said to have been from a broken heart.

! In 1246, Llywelyn ap Gruffudd - '/=.&#=.(+?B#+/);?' ruled, together with 

his brothers Owain and Dafydd.  They were the sons of Grif4th - Llywelyn 
the Great's brother.

! They did not agree on everything, and large amounts of Wales 
were awarded to relatives.  The land then fell to the English crown.

! In 1255, Llywelyn overthrew his brothers, and Owain was 
imprisoned by him at Dolbadarn for 22 years.  Llywelyn then 
started to recover much of the Welsh land that had been lost.

! In 1258, he started to call himself the 4rst Prince of Wales.
! By 1263, he had regained most of the land that had been lost to 

England.
! In 1267, Llywelyn became acknowledged by the English as the 

Prince of Wales.
! In 1272, Edward I came to the English throne, but Llywelyn 

refused to be loyal to him.
! In 1276, an English invasion forced Llywelyn to Snowdonia.
! In 1277, a treaty was signed by Llywelyn and the English.
! In 1282, Llywelyn was leading a small offensive against the 

English, and was killed by chance.  The Welsh lost heart, and it 
was the end of an independent Wales.

! In 1282, E)<.'' , the brother of Llywelyn the Last called himself the Prince 

of Wales, in an attempt to maintain the unity of Wales.  He took refuge at 
Castell-y-Bere, and then at Dolbadarn.  However, in 1283, he was captured 
and killed by soldiers of Edward I.

! Between 1283 and 1287, F'&)$'+G  built a series of castles around the north 

of Wales to force the Welsh to submit to the English.
! Walled towns were also constructed - only English people were 

allowed to live within the walls, although the Welsh were allowed 
to enter in order to trade.

! In 1284, Edward I ensured that his son was born at Caernarfon 
Castle, to stress his wish to integrate Wales with England.  That 
son later to become Edward II.

! In 1294, a Welsh rebellion under H)'>0+)I+/=.&#=.(  recaptured various 

places, including Castell-y-Bere and Caernarfon Castle.  However, the 
uprising was short-lived, and the English re-established control.

! In 1302, at Caernarfon, Edward I crowned his son, Edward, as the 4rst 
English Prince of Wales.

! In 1400, !&)%(+C=.('&$  started to develop into a new heroic leader of the 

ordinary Welsh people.
! He had been unfairly treated by the English, and rebelled with 

force, mainly using guerrilla tactics, living in the valleys and 
mountains.

! Mainly from 1402, he lead an uprising, capturing major castles, 
and had the support of much of Wales.

! In 1404, he captured Harlech Castle and Aberystwyth Castle.
! He created a Welsh Parliament in Machynlleth, agreeing a treaty 

with the French for military support.
! He was crowned as the Prince of Wales - the last native Prince of 

Wales.  Since then, the title has been conferred by the English 
monarch.

! In 1405 and 1406, he held Parliaments in Harlech and Dolgellau, 
and had regained the whole of Wales.

continued......

Copyright © 2004 - 2022 itforit.com.  All Rights Reserved



14

D>=%?%*)=+B%;?>$. (continued)

! In 1406, he contacted the King of France indicating his desire for 
the Welsh Church to be independent from England, with France as 
an ally.  However, the English Crown was too strong, and the 
alliance failed.

! The winter of 1408/9 was severe, and his power had been slowly 
eroded over the previous two years.  Aberystwyth Castle had fallen
to the English, and his followers were starved out of communities.

! In 1409, he was defeated at Harlech Castle.  Most of his family was
captured, and he disappeared.

! He fell from the political scene, and it is thought he died in 
obscurity in about 1415.

! From 1455 to 1485, the 'J)$;+><+?B#+A>;#;' were a struggle for the English 

throne, between the ruling House of York - with Richard III - and the House
of Lancaster.

! In 1457, Henry Tudor had been born in Wales.  He was of Welsh 
descent through the House of Lancaster, and was smuggled into 
France as a child.

! There was much support for Henry Tudor around Snowdonia, 
particularly at Harlech Castle, which was held at one time by 
Davydd ap Ivan for the House of Lancaster.

! In 1485, Henry Tudor's uncle, Jasper Tudor, brought him back into 
Wales, where an army was raised.  Henry Tudor defeated Richard 
III's troops at the Battle of Bosworth, near Nottingham - killing 
Richard III.

! The name of the 'Wars of the Roses' is derived from House of 
Lancaster(red rose emblem) and the House of York (white rose 
emblem).

! K#($.+L-'>$  became Henry VII, and married Elizabeth of York, which 

united the two royal houses.  The emblem for the House of Tudor became a 
red rose with a white centre.

! Henry VII was the 4rst Welsh-born King of England.  He allowed 
the Welsh to hold important positions, including being Members of
Parliament.

! In 1536, the M*?+><+:(%>( legally declared Wales and England to be united 

on equal terms, and new counties were created.
! From 1642 to 1646, the F(0=%;B+@%"%=+J)$ was about the power to rule the 

country - the King or Parliament.
! Generally, London and city-dwellers, together with the upper 

classes supported the Parliamentarians.  The Welsh supported the 
Royalists, together with country-dwellers, and lower classes.

! The argument was not a class or social problem, but religious and 
political.  It was the Royalists (for the King) against 
Parliamentarians (with Oliver Cromwell in charge).

! Harlech was the last Welsh castle to fall to Oliver Cromwell - 
although not until 1647, when the war had already been won earlier
by the Parliamentarians.

! Very little changed politically for nearly 300 years, until two events changed
Welsh life: coal-mining in south Wales became a more important industry, 
and the loss of about 40,000 Welshmen in World War I.

! These two events encouraged  enthusiasm for Welsh nationalism.

! In 1925, Plaid Genedlaethol Cymru (National Party of Wales) was 

founded.  It is now called D=)%'+@.2$-.
! Enthusiasm for the party grew, particularly in the 1950s and 1960s,

when resentment against English domination grew.
! Plaid Cymru is not a major party in the British parliament, but is 

still very active.
! In 1997, the Welsh were given a vote in a referendum, about a 1)?%>()=+

M;;#23=.+<>$+J)=#;.  50·3% were in favour, and 49·7% were against.
! The new National Assembly for Wales opened in 1999, with 

powers to administer a Welsh budget, and to make secondary laws.
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1 SNOWDONIA

16 day itinerary

Slate Mining / Quarrying in Snowdonia

To be technically correct, mining is from underground, and quarrying is from the 
surface.  It is found in Snowdonia that the two words are used almost interchangeably.

Slate mining is a very important part of the history of Snowdonia.  There are many 
scars left on the landscape, particularly around Blaenau Ffestiniog and Bethesda, in the form 
of great mounds of waste material, which was considered to be useless at the time.

These notes will help to understand its signi4cance, and the effects on the scenery 
and culture of the area.

Uses of Slate
! Slate is hard, impervious to water, strong, reasonably lightweight, but 

brittle, and does not absorb heat quickly when used indoors.
! It is particularly used in the building industry for roo4ng, lintels, Ooors, 

4replaces, larders and dairies.
! It is usually Oat, and ideal for gravestones, snooker tables, and for 

making containers such as cisterns and cof4ns.
! Although mostly is a shade of grey, there are variations of colour - 

green, blue, black and red - making it useful for decorative furniture.

Snowdonia Slate
! It has been used as roo4ng material since at least the 1100s.
! By the 1400s, it was used on many buildings of great importance.
! By the 1500s, small-scale quarries were providing slate for many local 

buildings.
! From the mid-1700s, the industrial revolution provided the means to 

mine on a large scale, and slate was exported around the country and 
the world - particularly to the USA.

! Around 1900, the industry was at its peak, and employed nearly 17,000 
men and children - most of whom worked in manual jobs.

! From the early-1900s, and after two World Wars, cheaper methods of 
production of alternative roo4ng materials had been discovered.  The 
industry went into a serious decline.

! It is still considered to be the best slate in the world.
! There is now a demand for good quality slate from people who demand 

'the best', and for renovations of historic buildings.

continued......
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Mining / Quarrying
! Slate is found in veins, with the strata running at varying angles from 

horizontal to nearly vertical.
! Open-cast quarrying was the 4rst method of extraction, with many 

farmers also running a small-scale quarrying operation.
! The majority of the extraction has been from underground - particularly

from within mountains, with light being provided by candles.
! Men created narrow tunnels to reach the best slate, which was then 

blasted out to form vast caverns at many different levels.
! Holes were made by hand with a drill and hammer, then 4lled with an 

explosive, and 4nally detonated.
! For removal from the caverns, the blocks were manually reduced in size,

and transported on narrow gauge tramways through the tunnels.
! As the levels became deeper, underground water was almost always a 

problem, and had to be pumped out.

Production of roofing slates
! On the surface, men working in sheds cut the rock to suitable sizes, split

the rocks by hand to the correct thickness, and then 'cut' the edges by 
hand to exactly the correct size.

! As machinery improved, mechanisation made many of the jobs easier 
and much quicker.

! Because of the natural variations in the material, it was considered that 
the human eye was a better judge of how to work the slate.  For this 
reason, there were fewer breakages from hand-made slates.

Team spirit
! Men and children often worked in teams, with underground and surface

members of each team.
! Teams were often members of the same family.
! Mines and quarries were often some distance away from home, and so 

barracks were built close to the place of work.
! Breaks for a drink and for lunch were usually taken in a 'caban', which 

was a makeshift cabin or hut close to the working area.
! The caban was a place to discuss work and families, and also to debate 

subjects like politics and religion.
! A great sense of community built up within the slate-team workers.
! A close bond developed throughout the communities, which was 

strengthened by injuries and occasional loss of life.
! The risks that the workers took were enormous, with many 

injuries from falling rock, and accidents with explosives and 
machinery.

! Many workers suffered with a lung disease, later recognised as
silicosis, which was caused by particles of silica in slate dust.

! Congregations grew in the local churches - Sundays were often devoted
to three services in a day.

! The Welsh language Oourished, as did team-type activities, such as 
choirs.
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1 SNOWDONIA

16 day itinerary

Narrow Gauge Railways

Whilst these may be considered to be attractions, they are a particular feature of this 
area of Wales, and many are part of its industrial heritage.

These railways have a growing group of enthusiastic volunteers, who give their time 
and effort to restore, maintain and run them.  This ensures the railways will be preserved for 
everyone to enjoy.

Most have intermediate stations with picnic areas, footpaths and other points of interest.

Bala Lake Railway / Rheilffordd Llyn Tegid
! This runs 4·5 miles southeast from Bala to Llanuwchllyn, along the 

shore of Bala Lake.
! The original track bed was part of the standard gauge mainline of the 

Great Western Railway, but it was closed in 1965.
! It reopened as a tourist attraction in 1972.
! It is now a 24" gauge track using steam power.
! The journey takes about 30 minutes each way.

Corris Railway / Rheilffordd Corris 
! This runs 0·75 mile south from Corris to Maespoeth.
! It originally opened in 1859, with horses as the motive power, and 

carried slate from the quarries to the River Dovey beyond Machynlleth.
! In 1878, steam locomotives were introduced, and passengers were 

carried from 1883 to 1930.
! It closed in 1948, but was re-opened in 2002 as a tourist attraction - 

currently running only at weekends and Bank Holidays.
! It is a 27" gauge track currently using diesel power, and a steam 

locomotive is currently under construction.
! The journey takes about 10 minutes each way.

! Because of local regulations, no single tickets are permitted.
! Return tickets are issued, which include a guided tour and talk 

about the sheds and railway at Maespoeth.
! The return journey, including the tour, takes about 50 minutes.

! It is hoped to extend the line a further 2·5 miles south, which will 
provide a rail link to King Arthur's Labyrinth and the Centre for 
Alternative Technology.

Fairbourne and Barmouth Steam Railway
! This runs about 1·6 miles west and north from Fairbourne to Penrhyn 

Point, at the end of a sand bar in the Mawddach estuary.
! From Penrhyn Point, it is possible to use a passenger ferry to 

cross the estuary to Barmouth.
! It was originally laid in 1895 by the Oour magnate, Arthur McDougall, 

to transport building materials for the village.  At that time, it was 
horse-drawn on a 15" track.

! In 1916, steam engines replaced the horses.
! In 1985, the track was converted to 12·25" gauge track, and is the 

smallest gauge in Wales.
! Four different steam engines are used.
! The journey takes about 20 minutes each way.

                  continued……
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Ffestiniog Railway / Rheilffordd Ffestiniog
! This runs 13·5 miles southwest from Blaenau Ffestiniog to Porthmadog.
! The Ffestiniog Railway Company is the world's oldest independent 

railway company.
! The line originally opened in 1836 using horse power to carry slates 

from Blaenau Ffestiniog to Porthmadog.
! It closed in 1946, with the decline of the slate industry.
! In 1955, it reopened as a tourist attraction with a 24" gauge track using 

steam power.
! 'Prince' is a locomotive in regular use, and is the world's oldest

steam engine.
! The journey takes just over 1 hour each way.

Llanberis Lake Railway
! This runs 2·5 miles northeast from Llanberis along the shore of Lake 

Padarn, with good views of Snowdon.
! From 1843 to 1961 it carried slate to Port Dinorwic from the Dinorwic 

Quarry, which eventually closed in 1969.
! The original 4 feet gauge track was converted to 23·5" gauge, and it re-

opened in 1971 as a tourist attraction - usually with steam power.
! The journey takes about 20 minutes each way.

Snowdon Mountain Railway
! This runs 4·6 miles southeast from Llanberis to within 66 feet of the 

summit of Snowdon (at 3,560 feet).
! It was built as a tourist attraction in 1896.
! It is the only rack and pinion railway in Britain, and is a 31·5" gauge 

track, using steam and diesel power.
! The journey goes through lower woodlands, over a spectacular viaduct, 

onto a ridge and then climbs to the top.
! The journey takes about 1 hour each way, and it is usual to stop at the 

summit for about 30 minutes.

Talyllyn Railway
! This runs 7·25 miles northeast from Tywyn to Nant Gwernol.
! It originally opened in 1865 to carry slate from the quarries to Tywyn.
! In 1946, it closed, but was re-opened in 1951 as a tourist attraction with

a 27" gauge track using steam power.
! It was the world's 4rst railway to be restored and run by volunteers.
! The journey takes about 1 hour each way.

Welsh Highland Railway / Rheilffordd Eryri
! This runs 6·75 miles south from Caernarfon to Rhyd Ddu, below 

Snowdon.
! The original railway was part of a planned series of narrow gauge 

railways and branch lines in western Snowdonia to serve the slate 
quarries.

! Some of the lines were completed, but not all.
! The part which is now open was 4rst opened in 1877.
! It closed in the 1930s.

! It reopened in 1997 with a 23·5" gauge track, using steam and diesel 

power.
! The journey takes about 1 hour each way.

! The line will eventually continue from Rhyd Ddu to Porthmadog, further

south.
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1 SNOWDONIA

16 day itinerary

Overnight summary, with alternatives

Overnight suggestions are in main towns.
! Accommodation could be taken anywhere in each local area.
! Information Centre telephone numbers are provided.  They have 

accommodation registers, and can provide lists, etc.
! The Snowdonia Countryside Tourist Association web site can provide 

information at: http://www.rainbowcourt.co.uk/scta

Day 1 Betws y Coed
Snowdonia National Park Information Centre:  01690 710426

Day 2 Betws y Coed
Snowdonia National Park Information Centre:  01690 710426

Day 3 Betws y Coed
Snowdonia National Park Information Centre:  01690 710426

Day 4 Betws y Coed
Snowdonia National Park Information Centre:  01690 710426

Day 5 Betws y Coed
Snowdonia National Park Information Centre:  01690 710426

Day 6 Betws y Coed
Snowdonia National Park Information Centre:  01690 710426

Day 7 Betws y Coed
Snowdonia National Park Information Centre:  01690 710426

Day 8 Betws y Coed
Snowdonia National Park Information Centre:  01690 710426

Day 9 Dolgellau
Snowdonia National Park Information Centre:  01341 422888

Day 10 Dolgellau
Snowdonia National Park Information Centre:  01341 422888

Day 11 Dolgellau
Snowdonia National Park Information Centre:  01341 422888

Day 12 Dolgellau
Snowdonia National Park Information Centre:  01341 422888

Day 13 Dolgellau
Snowdonia National Park Information Centre:  01341 422888

Day 14 Dolgellau
Snowdonia National Park Information Centre:  01341 422888

Day 15 Betws y Coed
Snowdonia National Park Information Centre:  01690 710426

Day 16 Your onward journey
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1 Day 1
Date………………………..….

Travelling day

! This page may be used to make notes about your travelling 
arrangements, in order to arrive at Betws-y-Coed - ready to start on 
your itinerary on Day 2.

! If you have arrived early at Betws-y-Coed, and wish to see some of the 
sights, please refer to Day 2.

Overnight around Betws-y-Coed
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1 Day 2
Date………………………..….

The 4rst day of your !"!"#!"+itinerary!  An easy day with varied 
interests - all near to Betws-y-Coed.

Approximate miles  = 30                           Today's map numbers - 445+&+446

Betws-y-Coed ("bet-us-uh-co-ed")
! Tourism started here in the late-

1700s.

! The watercolour artist, David Cox, helped to make the town 
more popular in the 1840s-1850s, together with other artists.  
His inn sign - a painting within a large wooden frame - is in 
the reception area of the Royal Oak Hotel.  It is now part of the
freehold of the property.

! The name is translated as 'Chapel in the Forest'.
! It is an attractive town, with the usual facilities, such as a bank and 

shops - particularly those selling outdoor clothing and equipment.
! It is on the River Conwy ("con-wee"), with the River Lledr ("hled-ur") 

joining about 1 mile south, and the River Llugwy ("hlig-wee") joining 
about 0·5 mile north.

! In 1815, a cast iron bridge was built by Thomas Telford over 
the River Conwy, about 0·25 mile south of the town centre.  It 
was named 'Waterloo Bridge', to honour the 1815 battle.

! A 1930 iron suspension bridge crosses the River Conwy near 
the 1300s Church of St Michael and All Angels, which is 
immediately across the railway from the town centre.

! Pont-y-Pair bridge  
! This is over the River 

Llugwy, just north of the 
town centre.

! The bridge was built in 1468, and provides a good view of the 
falls in the river.  It is an attractive area, and very popular.

! The name of the bridge is translated as 'bridge of the cauldron'.
! >6'+),"+*'(2#0='*+,-./(+9-5+='+%1*'#)-/'1+-)+-15+)09'+,60.'+01+)6'+

?'),(@5@A"'*+-#'-3

continued......
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E).+7 (continued)

Blacksmith's Pool walk
! >60(+()-#)(+01+)6'+#"-*+-)+)6'+#'-#+"!+)6'+BCDE+A6%#26+"!+$)+F-#5:+,6026+

0(+"1+)6'+GH+#"-*+01+?'),(@5@A"'*:+-)+DIJHKH3
! <)+0(+-+LMDH+90.'+.""7+,-./:+-(2'1*01&+1'-#.5+NLL+!''):+)6#"%&6+,""*(+)"

-1+60()"#02+#%01+-1*+)6'+=.-2/(90)6O(+7"".3
! 8-./+%7+)6'+)#-2/:+,6026+0(+'P-2).5+"77"(0)'+)6'+'-()+'1*+"!+)6'+26%#263
! G!)'#+-="%)+ELL+5-#*(:+='-#+.'!)+"1)"+-+1-##",:+.';'.+7-)6:+7-()+-+#%01'*

2"))-&'3
! G)+"1'+)09':+101'+260.*#'1+,'#'+#-0('*+01+)60(+(9-..+2"))-&'+@+

"1'+"!+,6"9+='2-9'+-+,'..@/1",1+7#'-26'#3
! <)+,-(+-.("+%('*+-(+-+Q"1@A"1!"#90()+9'')01&+6"%(':+%1)0.+)6'+

1',+26-7'.+,-(+=%0.)+01+)6'+)",1+01+BDID3
! <1+)6'+'-#.5@BILL(:+0)+,-(+)6'+6"9'+"!+-+=.01*+6-#70()3

! A"1)01%'+7-()+)6'+2"))-&'+"1+)6'+7-)6+!"#+-="%)+BLL+5-#*(:+)"+2#"((+-+
()#'-9:+-1*+)6'1+2"1)01%'+*",160..3

! >6'+()#'-9+,-(+"12'+*-99'*+=5+-+=.-2/(90)6:+)"+7#";0*'+
,-)'#+7",'#3++>6'+7"".+0(+()0..+'-(0.5+(''1:+!#"9+,6'#'+)6'+
()#'-9+2-(2-*'(+*",1+)6'+60..(0*'3

! A#"((+-+=#0*&'+";'#+)6'+()#'-9:+-1*+2"1)01%'+*",1+)6#"%&6+)6'+,""*(+
)"+)6'+#"-*3

! >6'+#'9-01(+"!+)6'+=.-2/(90)6O(+=%0.*01&(+2-1+='+(''1+-)+)6'+
#'-#+"!+)6'+6"%('+)"+)6'+#0&6)+"!+)6'+7-)63

! >%#1+.'!)+-."1&+)6'+#"-*:+-1*+)6'1+.'!)+-."1&+)6'+GH+#"-*:+=-2/+)"+)6'+
26%#26:+,6026+0(+-="%)+LMNH+90.'+!#"9+)6'+7-)6O(+'1*3

Miners Bridge walk
! >60(+()-#)(+-)+)6'+R"1)@5@R-0#+

=#0*&'+01+?'),(@5@A"'*:+-)+
DINHKD3

! <)+0(+-+N+90.'(:+#'-("1-=.5+.';'.:
#')%#1+,-./+-."1&+)6'+-))#-2)0;'
S0;'#+T.%&,5+)"+-1+".*+901'#(O+
#0;'#+2#"((01&3

! 8-./+%7()#'-9+-."1&+)6'+=-1/+"1+)6'+1"#)6+(0*'+"!+)6'+#0;'#3
! >6'+U#()+-1*+)60#*+('2)0"1(+-#'+%1';'1+01+7.-2'(:+=%)+)6'+

('2"1*+('2)0"1+0(+-2#"((+-+7.'-(-1)+7-()%#'3
! >6'+7-)6+&"'(+)"+)6'+F01'#(+?#0*&'+-2#"((+)6'+S0;'#+T.%&,53

! F01'+,"#/'#(+!#"9+)6'+6-9.')+"!+R'1)#'+4%+VW7'1 @)#'@*'' WX:+
Y%()+("%)6+"!+)6'+#0;'#:+"12'+2.09='*+*",1+-+.-**'#+"1+)6'+
("%)6+(0*'+"!+)6'+#0;'#3++>6'5+)6'1+2#"(('*+-+#-97+=#0*&'+%7+)"+
)6'+1"#)6+=-1/:+!#"9+,6'#'+)6'5+2"%.*+,-./+)"+;-#0"%(+.'-*+
901'(+-="%)+B+90.'+!%#)6'#+1"#)6+@+7-#)02%.-#.5+-)+R-#2+-1*+
A5!!)5+VW2""; @)''WX+V(''+4-5+EX3

! <)+0(+7"((0=.'+)"+9-/'+)60(+-+.""7+,-./+=5+&"01&+!#"9+)6'+F01'#(+?#0*&'+
()#-0&6)+%760..+)6#"%&6+)6'+,""*(+"1+)6'+1"#)6+(0*'+"!+)6'+#0;'#3++G+
901"#+#"-*+,0..+='+!"%1*+-!)'#+-="%)+ELL+5-#*(:+,6026+2-1+='+!"..",'*+
*",160..+)"+)6'+#0&6)+@+=-2/+)"+R"1)@5@R-0#+=#0*&'3

Leave Betws-y-Coed north on the B5106 road.

continued......
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Gwydir Uchaf Chapel of Holy Trinity ("goo-eed-ir-oo-khav")
! This is about 3 miles north of Betws-y-Coed, at 794609.

! A 0·25 mile access road leaves the B5106 road at 797607 
(about 0·25 mile before Gwydir Castle - see below).

! It was built in 1673 by John Wynn of Gwydir Castle (see below) for his
family's private use.

! During the 1600s, the Wynn family lived at Gwydir Uchaf 
(Upper Gwydir) house, rather than at the larger Gwydir Castle.
Consequently, this chapel was built close to Gwydir Uchaf.

! The house of Gwydir Uchaf has been much altered 
over the centuries.  It is now Forestry Commission 
of4ces.

! The carving over the entrance door is 'SRWB 1673', indicating 'Sir 
Richard Wynn, Baronet 1673'.

! It has a particularly beautiful and dramatic painted ceiling.
! The vaulted ceiling is made of poplar wood, and the painting is

directly onto the wood, with the joints being covered by cotton
tape.

! The design signi4es heaven, with pink angels dressed in white 
and red, white clouds, gold stars and 4re - all set against a dark
blue sky.

! It is normally open, although access should be arranged with 
the key-holders at Gwydir Castle (see below).

! Prior arrangements can be made by telephone, on 
01492-641687.

Gwydir Castle ("goo-eed-ir")
! This is about 0·25 mile east of 

Gwydir Uchaf Chapel of Holy 
Trinity, at 796610.

! It is a superb Tudor mansion - 
rather than a castle - designed 
like a country house, with mock
forti4cations.

! An original house was possibly built by Howell ap Coetmore ("co-et-

mor"), who had commanded longbowmen for the Black Prince (1330-
1376) at Poitiers, in France, in 1356.  Howell ap Coetmore died in 
battle at Flanders, in 1388.

! The Black Prince was the oldest son of Edward III, and 
defeated the French army near Poitiers.

! About 1500, the house was purchased by Meredith (1460-1525).

! Meredith was descended from Llywelyn the Great ("hlee-wel-

een").
! He had fought in many battles, and had become wealthy from 

land purchased around Dolwyddelan in 1488 (see Day 8).
! He had 21 children.  His eldest son was named John Wynn ap 

Meredith (died 1559), and hence the Wynn dynasty was 
formed.

! Morris Wynn (died 1580) and Grif4th Wynn were the
4rst two sons of John Wynn ap Meredith.

! Robert Wynn (1520-1598) was the third son of John 
Wynn ap Meredith.  He built Plas Mawr in Conwy 
(see Day 7).

! Meredith constructed the nucleus of the existing buildings.
! Many more buildings were constructed, mainly around the central 

courtyard.

continued......
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Gwydir Castle (continued)
! Perhaps the most famous of the Wynn family was Sir John Wynn MP 

(1553-1626/7), who greatly enlarged parts of the house.
! He inherited the estate in 1580, from his father, Morris Wynn.
! He was involved in law, politics, farming, mining, smelting, 

land reclamation, and many other rather dubious activities.
! He had many friends in high places, including the famous 

architect Inigo Jones (1573-1652).
! He was respected, but feared, especially by his tenants.  Near 

the end of his life, he started to give to charity, particularly in 
Llanrwst (see Day 3).

! In 1625, 12 Cedars of Lebanon were 
planted in the grounds to commemorate 
the wedding of Charles I to Queen 
Henrietta-Maria of France.  Four trees still
remain.

! A disastrous 4re took a large part of the 
buildings in the mid-1700s, and some of 
the remainder was let to farmers.

! In the early-1800s, restoration work was 
carried out, together with some new 
building.  In 1895, the estate was sold to a
cousin, who lived here until 1921, when it
was sold together with the contents.

! In 1922, another disastrous 4re caused much damage.  It was then left 
empty until 1944, when a retired bank manager purchased it, and 
carried out some restoration over 20 years.

! The present owners are carefully restoring and conserving the property. 
They are also retrieving the previously-sold contents from around the 
world - most notably the 1640s Dining Room panelling, which had 
been purchased by William Randolph Hearst in 1921.

! The property has a reputation for being haunted by many ghosts.
! There is a self-guided tour of the house, which has many original items 

of furniture.

Ty'n-y-Coed Uchaf walk ("teen-uh-co-ed-oo-khav")
! >60(+()-#)(+-="%)+H+90.'(+("%)6+"!+Z,5*0#+A-().':+-)+CLKHNC3

! >6'#'+0(+-+7-#/01&+-#'-:+Y%()+"!!+)6'+#"-*3
! <)+0(+-+#'-("1-=.5+.';'.:+N+90.'(+#')%#1+,-./+)"+-+!-#9:+-."1&+-+7.'-(-1)+

!"")7-)6+='(0*'+)6'+S0;'#+F-261"+VW9-/6 @1"WX+V-.)6"%&6+("9'+*"2%9'1)(+
()-)'+LMDH+90.'+'-26+,-5X3++>6'#'+0(+1"+7%=.02+;'602%.-#+-22'((3

! >6'+(9-..+!-#9+6-(+=''1+9-01)-01'*+'P-2).5+-(+0)+,-(+01+)6'+.-)'@BCLL(+
)"+'-#.5@BILL(3

! <)+7#";0*'(+-+&""*+2"12'7)+"!+-+(9-..+8'.(6+60..+!-#9+01+)60(+-#'-:+-1*+
9-5+='+)6'+"1.5+(%#;0;01&+'P-97.'+"!+-+!-#9+01+(%26+-+2"1*0)0"13

! >6'+!-#9+6-*+=''1+"22%70'*+=5+)'1-1)+!-#9'#(+!#"9+)6'+(-9'+!-90.5:+
(012'+0)+,-(+=%0.)+01+BCEI3

! >6'+.-()+)'1-1)+.'!)+01+BIIL:+.'-;01&+='601*+-..+6'#+!%#10)%#':+
,6026+6-*+-22%9%.-)'*+)6#"%&6"%)+)6'+!-90.5O(+)09'+6'#'3

! $"9'+-.)'#-)0"1(+,'#'+9-*'+)"+)6'+=%0.*01&+01+BIBK:+=%)+9-01(
,-)'#:+'.'2)#020)5+-1*+*#-01-&'+,'#'+1")+-**'*3

! [%)(0*':+)6'#'+-#'+70&+7'1(+-1*+-+#"")+2.-97:+,6026+7#'('#;'*+
#"")+2#"7(+)6#"%&6+)6'+,01)'#3

! <)+0(+7-#)+"!+-+)6'+.-#&'()+-&#02%.)%#-.+'()-)'+",1'*+=5+)6'+Q-)0"1-.+
>#%()3++>60(+!-#9+0(+Y%()+JL+-2#'(+@+7-#)+"!+)6'+)")-.+"!+NL:LLL+-2#'(3

! >60(+0(+-+Q-)0"1-.+>#%()+7#"7'#)5+-1*+"7'101&+)09'(+(6"%.*+='+26'2/'*+
"1+LBKIL+DKLNNI3++[7'101&+)09'(+-#'+1"#9-..5+>6%#(*-5:+\#0*-5+-1*+
$%1*-5:+!#"9+BN+1""13
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Ty Mawr Wybrnant ("tee-mowr-wee-ber-nant")
! This is about 2 miles west of 

Ty'n-y-Coed Uchaf, at 770525.
! It is reached by a 

narrow lane up through 
the Gwydyr Forest, 
starting about 0·5 mile 
west of the village of 
Penmachno, at 790505.

! The of4cial parking area is about 100 feet above the house, 
linked by a 300 yard slate path, which has about 125 steps.

! Parking for the disabled is in front of the house, further along 
the gated road.

! It was the birthplace of William Morgan (1545-1604), who made the 
4rst entire translation of the Bible into Welsh.

! During the dissolution of the monasteries, a monk, being 
pursued by Henry VIII's men, was given refuge by the Morgan
family in this farmhouse.  Recognising William Morgan's 
intellectual talent, the monk helped educate him.

! William Morgan went to Cambridge University, and was then 
appointed and encouraged by Elizabeth I to translate the Bible 
- possibly to gain favour with the Welsh people.  The 
translation was 4nished in 1588.

! He became Bishop of Llandaff ("hlan-daf"), and then Bishop 

of St Asaph.
! The building dates from the early-1500s, and has been restored to be 

like a typical farmhouse of the 1500s to 1600s.
! Although this appears to be in an isolated position, at the time 

of William Morgan's birth it was on an important drovers' 
road.

! It contains some rudimentary furniture, including a three-part 
cupboard / display unit, made in 1689.  This contains a growing 
collection of at least 45 Bibles from around the world.

! This is a National Trust property and opening times should be checked 
on 01690 760213.  Opening times are normally Thursday, Friday, 
Saturday and Sunday, from 12 noon.

Overnight around Betws-y-Coed
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1 Day 3
Date………………………..….

Around the Conwy valley today, with views, legend, history, 
industrial archaeology and wonderful gardens.

Approximate miles  = 40                          Today's map numbers - 445+&+446

Leave Betws-y-Coed west on the A5 road.

Ty Hyll!("tee-heehl")
! This about 2·5 miles west of 

Betws-y-Coed, on the A5 road, 
at 756576.

! The translation of Ty Hyll is 
'Ugly House', as it was built so 
quickly, using building 
methods and materials of 
unusual proportions.

! It is believed to date from the late-1400s.  In order to obtain the 
freehold on common land, it was built quickly.

! The custom was that if a dwelling could be built between dusk 
and dawn - with walls, roof and a smoking chimney - the 
freehold could be claimed.

! At one time, it was used as an overnight stop for Irish drovers taking 
cattle to English markets.

! In the early-1800s, it was used by the men constructing the road.
! In the mid-1800s, it was written about as a 'quaint cottage', but by 1988,

it was abandoned and in a dilapidated state.
! It has been renovated by the Snowdonia Society, which uses the upper 

Ooor as of4ce space.
! The ground Ooor has been furnished as an 1800s Welsh cottage, and has

a display about the Snowdonia Society.
! It is open to visitors, and there is a small garden, together with a 

woodland walk through the remaining 5 acres.

Leave Ty Hyll north along a narrow country lane, beside the cottage.

Viewpoint
! This is about 1 mile northeast of Ty Hyll, at 765583.
! It provides a good view southeast, across the Conwy valley.

continued......
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Cyffty Lead Mine ("coov-tee")
! This is 1 mile northeast of the 

viewpoint, at 770589.
! Although some lead had been 

mined here before, it was in the
1850s that the main operation 
started.

! There are good views over the site from a rough parking area at the 
east, and there is a path around the site to obtain a closer look.

! There are two shafts - one at each end of the site.  There is a viewing 
platform over the west shaft.

! There are the remains of various buildings from the 1870s, including a 
crushing mill, a row of cottages, a blacksmith's workshop and a buddle 
pit.

! After crushing, the powdered ore was stirred around in the 
buddle pit, where the heavy lead laden particles dropped to the 
bottom, and the lighter waste was washed away.

! Early buddles were just boxes, with running water.
! Later versions were more elaborate with the crushed rock 

particles being fed along a duct, and dropped onto a central 
cone.  Swirling water then took away the lighter particles to the 
outer edges of the buddle, leaving the heavier, lead laden 
particles near the centre.  The water was released from the 
buddle, and it was then relatively easy to collect the lead laden 
particles, ready for smelting.

! Water from the mine shafts was pumped out using water power from a 
35 feet water-wheel situated between the two shafts.

! Until the early-1900s, power for machinery was provided by water and 
horses.  Coal then became available via the nearby railway, and steam 
power took over.

Return along the road for about 0·25 mile, and turn right (north).

Llyn Geirionydd ("hleen-gay-ree-on-eth")
! This is about 2 miles northwest of Cyffty Lead Mine, at 763610.

! Monument to Taliesin   ("tal-ee-es-in")
! This is at the north end of the 1-mile-long lake.
! It was erected about 1850, to commemorate the area being the 

traditional birthplace of Taliesin.
! The original monument was damaged by lightning and was re-

erected in 1994.

! Taliesin  
! He was an early bard of Wales, who may have lived a

little later than King Arthur, but whose stories are 
inextricably interwoven with Arthurian legends.

! He is thought to have lived in the 500s AD.

continued......
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Llanrhychwyn ("hlan-rookh-ween")

! Church of St Rhychwyn (  "rookh-ween")
! This about 0·75 mile 

northeast of Llyn 
Geirionydd, at 775616.

! It is known as Llywelyn's Old Church, and was used by him 
and his wife until he built a chapel at Trefriw (see below).

! It is set in a wonderfully isolated and tranquil position in a 
farming area, with good views over the Conwy valley.

! Quaintly, there is no path to the church, and it is necessary to 
walk across the corner of the 4eld, to enter through the 1762 
lychgate (the original date has been altered to read 1462).

! A lych is the old word for a body.  A roofed lychgate 
was a place to rest with the cof4n, before a funeral 
service.

! The south aisle of the church dates from the late-1000s to 
early-1100s, with later alterations and additions - particularly 
the north aisle, which was added in the 1500s.

! It is the oldest church in Wales.
! The window behind the altar dates from the 1400s, 

and is thought it may be the oldest glass in Wales.
! The small square font is one of the earliest known fonts in 

Britain, probably dating from the 1000s or 1100s.
! Much of the 

furnishings - such as 
the pulpit, altar rails 
and altar - date from 
the 1600s and 1700s.

! The general appearance is that the church has not 
altered much since those times, having managed to 
avoid been 'modernised' by the Victorians.

! It is still lit by candles.
! St Rhychwyn was a 500s AD saint, who founded a place of 

worship here at that time.  The original structure would have 
been of timber.

Trefriw ("trev-reeoo")
! This is 0·75 miles northeast of Llanrhychwyn on the B5106 road, at 

780632.
! In about 1230, Llywelyn the Great had a hunting lodge, or held court, 

here.
! He built a 'chapel of ease', to save his wife, Joan (Siwan), 

having to walk up to Llanrhychwyn Church (see above).
! Nothing of the Trefriw Chapel of Ease now remains.

! At one time, this was a port, which shipped minerals, slate, bark for the 
tanning trade, cloth, wool and grain.  However, the River Conwy 
became silted up, and river traf4c stopped in the late-1940s.

continued......
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Trefriw (continued)

! Trefriw Woollen Mills  
! This is clearly signposted on the B5106 road, in the centre of 

the village.
! Thomas Williams purchased the mill in 1859, and it is still 

owned and run by members of the same family.
! The mill manufactures woollen cloth with traditional 

Welsh designs.
! It is on the River Crafnant ("crav-nant"), which is a tributary of

the River Conwy.
! At one time the mill was powered directly with 

waterpower from the river.
! Since about 1900, waterpower has been used to drive 

hydro-electric turbines, which produce electricity to 
drive electric motors.

! Since 1952, the water has been piped from about 0·25
mile upstream - to provide greater power.

! The soft water in the fast-Oowing river was also used 
to wash the wool.

! It is a commercial enterprise - but there is an interesting free 
self-guided tour round the mill machinery.

! The tour includes blending of wool, carding, 
spinning, hanking, dyeing, washing, winding, 
warping and weaving.  The hydro-electric machinery 
can also be viewed.

! It is open daily, on weekdays only.

Bodnant Garden
! This is about 6 miles northeast of 

Trefriw, just off the A470 road.
! The entrance is across the 

minor road from the parking 
area, at 802724.

! Bodnant is the family home of the Barons of Aberconway.
! It was built in 1792, and purchased by Henry Pochin (1821-

1895) in 1874, when he retired.  He had been an industrial 
chemist, and had made two inventions connected with soap and 
paper manufacture, making him very wealthy.

! The house passed down through his daughter, who married the
barrister Charles McLaren (1913-2003).  The house is still the 
private residence of the McLaren family.  It is not open to the 
public.

! The garden of 80 acres was given to the National Trust in 1949, 
and is open to the public.

! The McLaren family and the Head Gardener manage the garden 
on behalf of the National Trust.

! Many of the old trees in the garden had been planted in 1792, but from 
1904 to 1914, the Aberconway family designed and organised the 
layout of formal terraces close to the house.  The family was also 
responsible for the introduction of many rhododendrons.

! The garden faces south across the Conwy valley with a wonderful 
backdrop of the Snowdonia mountains.

! Abundant water has been used to good effect in the creation of various 
ponds and pools, both formal and informal.

continued......

Copyright © 2004 - 2022 itforit.com.  All Rights Reserved



30

E).+9 (continued)

Bodnant Garden (continued)
! The garden can be divided into 

two areas.

! The upper area - near the house - is the formal Terrace Garden.
! The lower area - centred around the small Hiraethlyn ("hee-

riy-thleen") valley - is The Dell, which is informal.
! The garden is at its best in the spring and early summer, when the many

rhododendrons, azaleas, magnolias and camellias are in bloom.  The 
famous laburnum arch is also in Oower at this time.

! During the summer, the herbaceous borders and roses come to life, and 
the water lilies Oower.

! The Dell area has many attractive crossing points of the River 
Hiraethlyn, and a high weir.

! This is a National Trust property and opening times should be checked 
on 01492 650460.  It is open from 10 am.

Llanrwst ("hlan-roost")
! This is about 7 miles south of Bodnant Garden, on the A470 road, at 

800615.
! It is a busy market town, on the River Conwy, and almost untouched by

tourism.  The centre of the town is Ancaster Square.
! A settlement has been here since at least 945 AD, and there may have 

been a Roman harbour on the river bank.
! It has been famous as a manufacturing town, for furniture, clocks and 

particularly harps.
! Church Street is a narrow, old street, leading from the corner of 

Ancaster Square.

! Almshouses  
! These are in Church Street, on the right.
! They have been converted into an interesting museum about 

the town, and particularly about the almshouses.
! They were established in 1610 by Sir John Wynn, of Gwydir 

Castle (see Day 2), when he had recovered from an illness.
! At 4rst, they were for 12 poor men of the town, aged over 65.  

Each man had one single room.
! After a 4-year court case ending in 1843, to establish who 

should provide further funds, women were also housed here.
! They continued to be homes until the 1970s.

! Church of St Grwst  
! This is at the end of 

Church Street.
! It is kept locked, 

but the key is 
available from 
the Verger's 
house at 14 
Church Street - 
the end house.

continued......
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Llanrwst (continued)

! Church of St Grwst   (continued)
! St Grwst ("groost") was a missionary, and founded this church 

in 540 AD.  He was known as 'St Grwst the Confessor'.
! Various headstones in the churchyard have been engraved with 

Welsh harps.  A good example is immediately on the right, 
through the church gates - that of the harp-maker David Roberts.

! The present church dates from 1170, but has been altered 
many times over the centuries.

! The original part is at the west end.
! In 1468, its thatched roof was destroyed by 4re, and 

many alterations were then carried out.
! In 1670, it was re-built, and had a major restoration in

1884.

! Rood screen  
! This is very 4ne, with a gallery, which was used for 

the minstrels, who provided music for the services.
! It was installed in 1538, having been brought by boat 

from the Cistercian Abbey at Maenan ("miy-nan"), 
when it was dissolved.

! Maenan is about 2 miles north of Llanrwst.

! Mourning Bell  
! This unusual feature is usually kept near the rood 

screen.
! It is a hand-held bell, used to summon people to 

mourn.
! Its 1655 inscription was the date of a repair.  It is 

believed to date from at least 1100, and probably 
earlier.

! Gwydir Chapel  
! This is off the chancel, on the south side.
! Its design is attributed to Inigo Jones, and building 

was completed in 1634.
! It was built by Sir Richard Wynn, the son of 

Sir John Wynn.
! It was intended as a mausoleum and memorial chapel 

for the Wynns of Gwydir Castle, and has the remains 
of at least 14 members of the family.

! It has the empty 
stone cof4n of 
Llywelyn the 
Great (1173-
1240), which had 
originally been at 
the Cistercian 
Abbey in Conwy.

! It was moved with the Abbey to Maenan.
! On the dissolution of Maenan Abbey, it was 

loaded into a boat, to be moved to Llanrwst.
! However, the boat capsized and the cof4n 

fell into the River Conwy.  It was later found
in Llanrwst being used as a rubbish 
receptacle, and was transferred here.

! A life-size stone ef4gy is of Howell ap Coetmore, 
who built Gwydir Castle.

! There are also a reading table, timber roof and various
sections of screen, which were rescued from Maenan 
Abbey.

continued......
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Pont Fawr  #  ("pont-vowr")
! This is about 200 yards south of

Llanrwst, at 798615.
! It is a graceful bridge with three

arches over the River Conwy, 
and leads into Llanrwst.

! It was built in 1636, and was reputedly designed by Inigo Jones (1573-
1652).  However, it is considered very unlikely that he was responsible 
for controlling its construction, as it has had a history of problems.

! The arch on the west side collapsed in 1642, 1678 and 1702.
! In the 1800s, it was called the 'Shaking Bridge', as it was so 

unstable.
! In the 1900s, it was reinforced, and is now safe.

! Tu Hwnt I’r Bont   ("ti-hoont-lr-bont")
! This is at the western end of the bridge.
! Its translation from Welsh is 'the house over the bridge'.
! It is a quaint 1400s building, and at one time was the local 

Courthouse.
! It was then converted into two cottages.
! It is now owned by the National Trust, and is a café.
! It is frequently Oooded during the winter.

Overnight around Betws-y-Coed
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1 Day 4
Date………………………..….

A day of mountains, a spectacular castle, maybe a power station 
and a walk.

Approximate miles  = 60                           Today's map number - 445

Leave Betws-y-Coed west on the A5 road.

Capel Curig ("cap-el-ki-rig")
! This is about 5 miles northwest of Betws-y-Coed, at the junction of the 

A5 road with the A4086 road, at 721581.
! It is at the junction of the River Nantgwryd ("nant-goo-rid") and the 

River Llugwy, and is popular with walkers, climbers, anglers and 
artists.

! It is dominated to the west by the peaks of Tryfan ("tru-van"), Glyder 

Fach ("glee-der-vakh") and Glyder Fawr ("glee-der-vowr") and Moel 
Siabod ("mo-el-see-ah-bod").

! Plas-y-Brenin is the National Mountain Centre, which is run by the 
Sports Council of Wales.

! Prior to climbing Mount Everest in 1953, Sir John Hunt’s team came 
here to practise.

Llanberis Pass ("hlan-ber-is")
! This is about 5 miles southwest of Capel Curig, on the A4086 road, at 

630565.

! Pen-y-Pass   ("pen-uh-pas")
! This is on the A4086 road, at 647557.
! It is one of the most popular starting points to walk up 

Snowdon, as it starts at the high elevation of 1,178 feet.
! Two paths start from here - the Miners' Track and the Pyg 

Track.  It is common to ascend by one and descend by the other.

Pass through Llanberis on the A4086 road - you will be returning here later today.

Caernarfon ("kiyr-nar-von")
! This is about 10 miles northwest of 

Llanberis Pass, at 480625.
! It is a walled town of about 3 acres of 

quaint, narrow streets.
! It is an easy town to visit on foot, and it is

suggested to park at the parking area by 
the castle.

continued......
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Caernarfon (continued)

! Caernarfon Castle  
! One of Britain’s most 

historic castles, it is 
next to the River Seiont 
("saynt") and the Menai
Strait ("men-iy").

! It is a World Heritage 
Site, including the town 
walls.

! The site had previously had at least a Roman fort and a 1090 
timber forti4cation.

! It was constructed between 1283 and 1285 by Edward I.
! It was part of a series of castles built to force the 

Welsh to submit to the English, after the death of 
Llywelyn the Last - in 1282.

! Parts of the castle were never completed.
! He also built the wall around the town.  Only English 

people were allowed to live inside the wall and castle,
although the Welsh were allowed to enter in order to 
trade.

! It was built as a royal palace, and also as a place of 
government for Wales.

! Its design was based on the walls of Constantinople.
! Unlike many of Edward I's other castles, it was not 

painted white, but had bands of coloured stone, and 
multi-sided towers.

! To stress Edward I's wish to 
integrate Wales with England, 
his son was born here in 1284 - 
later to become Edward II.

! It was damaged and taken by the 

Welsh during the Madog ("mad-
og") Rebellion of 1294, but was 
re-taken by the English in 1295.  
Repairs and improvements were 
then made.

! By 1330, it had fallen into disrepair, although soldiers 
continued to be stationed here.

! In 1403-1404, the Welsh rebelled against the English, under 

Owain Glyndwr ("oh-wayn-gleen-doo-ur"), but the castle 
withstood attacks.

! The remains are in very good condition, with nine massive 
towers set around a courtyard in a roughly rectangular shape.

! Joseph Turner (1775-1851), the artist, visited the castle in 

1798 and 1799, producing several painting of the castle and 
surrounding area.

! There are excellent opportunities to explore the courtyard, 
spiral staircases up the towers, and along the tops of the walls.

continued......
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Caernarfon (continued)

! Caernarfon Castle   (continued)
! In 1969, it was the site of the 

investiture of HRH Prince 
Charles as Prince of Wales.

! There is a good 
exhibition about the 
investiture.

! There is an excellent exhibition 
about Welsh history, and a 
particularly good 4lm, which 
lasts 23 minutes.

! The Royal Welch Fusiliers' 
museum is in one of the towers.

! Welsh Highland Railway / Rheilffordd Eryri   ("rayl-vorth-e-roo-ree")
! The station is just south of Caernarfon Castle, at 481625.
! See the section 'Narrow Gauge Railways', on page 17, for 

some details about this railway.

! Segontium Roman Museum  
! This is on the A4085 road 

(Llanbeblig Road), southeast of 
town centre, at 485625.

! Segontium was a Roman fort, built 
in 77 AD.

! Much of the masonry was used by 

Edward I in the building of 
Caernarfon Castle.

! It was excavated from 1918 to 1924 by Sir Mortimer Wheeler.
! Foundations can be clearly seen of the many buildings, where 

about 600-700 soldiers were stationed, but it may have been 
intended for up to 1,000.

! The small museum tells the story of Roman conquest and 
occupation for about 300 years.

! Admission is free.
! It is open daily, except on Mondays, from 12.30 to 4.30pm.

Llanberis ("hlan-ber-is")

! 1>?#P  As there is much to see at Llanberis, the features have been 

divided between two days - see also Day 5.
! It is about 6 miles southeast of Caernarfon, on the A4086 road, at 

580600.
! It is set in a beautiful location, by the side of Lake Padarn ("pad-ahrn").
! It was built to accommodate workers and their families at the Dinorwic 

Quarry.

! Dinorwic Quarry   (din-or-wig")
! This opened in 1787, producing especially good 

quality slate.
! In 1900, it employed 3,000 workers.

! On 1st July 1969, the investiture of the Prince of 

Wales at Caernarfon Castle was performed on a slate 
dais from here.  One month later, the quarry closed.

! It is now a climbing centre, with one of the easiest and most popular 
paths up Snowdon - although it is one of the longest.
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Llanberis (continued)

! Electric Mountain  
! The Visitor Centre for this is on the A4086 road.

! Visitor Centre  
! This has displays about the Dinorwig Power Station, 

two ancient boats, and a changing art exhibition.
! The two boats were discovered during 

excavation for the Dinorwig Power Station.  
The Peris Boat is 20 feet long, dating from the 
1500s, and a dugout canoe from the 1100s.

! It is free to visit.

! Underground tour of Dinorwig Power Station  
! This starts at the Visitor Centre, and visitors are taken

to the power station by coach.
! It goes into Europe’s largest man-made cavern, which

houses the power station.  It was completed in 1984.
! It includes two 4lms - one detailing the construction, 

and the other about the adaptability of this particular 
power station to provide electricity on demand.

! It can generate electricity within 12 seconds, when a 
high demand is suddenly made.  Full generation is 
achieved in under 16 seconds.

! Water from Marchlyn Mawr ("markh-leen-mowr") is 

piped through a tunnel to the turbines, which generate
electricity.

! The head of water is nearly 2,000 feet.
! The water is captured in Llyn Peris, and then

pumped back to Marchlyn Mawr.
! It is the larger of the only two pumped water power 

stations in Britain.  The other is at Ffestiniog (see Day
8).

! There is a fee for the tour, and at busy times it is 
recommended to book on 01286 870636.

! Snowdon Mountain Railway  
! The station is about 300 yards south of the Electric Mountain 

Visitor Centre, on the A4086 road.
! See the section 'Narrow Gauge Railways', on page 17, for 

some details about this railway.
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Ceunant Mawr Waterfall walks ("koy-nant-mowr")
! >6'('+=")6+()-#)+-)+)6'+(-9'+7"01)+@+-)+)6'+("%)6'#1+'1*+"!+A6%#26+T-1':

T.-1='#0(:+-)+HCLHIH3
! \#"9+T.-1='#0(+]0&6+$)#''):+&"+-."1&+)6'+.-1'+VA6%#26+T-1'X+

-)+)6'+(0*'+"!+)6'+A6%#26+"!+$)+R-*-#1:+!"#+-="%)+LMNH+90.'3
! Q'-#+)6'+'1*+"!+)6'+.-1':+)6'+-#26'*+;0-*%2)+"!+)6'+$1",*"1+

F"%1)-01+S-0.,-5+,0..+='+(''1:+-1*+-+901"#+#"-*+0(+"1+)6'+
#0&6)+,0)6+-+2-)).'+&#0*3

! Walk 1  
! >60(+,-./+0(+LMH+90.':+

(.",.5+-(2'1*01&+
1'-#.5+BLL+!'')+)"+;0',
)6'+,-)'#!-..+!#"9+
='.",3

! 8-./+%7+)6'+901"#+#"-*+!"#+-="%)+HL+5-#*(:+-1*+)6'1+)%#1+
(6-#7+.'!)+-."1&+-+!'12'3++G!)'#+-+!%#)6'#+HL+5-#*(:+-+2"12#')'+
-1*+(.-)'+7-)6+,0..+='+!"%1*+='(0*'+)6'+#0;'#3

! >6'+7-)6+!"..",(+)6'+=-('+"!+-+#-;01':+,0)6+)6'+)%9=.01&+,-)'#(
"!+)6'+S0;'#+],26+VW6""/6WX:+)"+-##0;'+-)+)6'+!"")+"!+-+
*#-9-)02:+-1&.'*+,-)'#!-..3

! A'%1-1)+F-,#+9'-1(+O=0&+#-;01'O3
! Walk 2  

! >60(+,-./+0(+LMH+90.':+#-70*.5+
-(2'1*01&+-="%)+BKL+!''):+)"+;0',
)6'+,-)'#!-..+!#"9+-=";'3

! 8-./+%760..+!#"9+)6'+2-)).'+&#0*+
!"#+-="%)+LMNH+90.'3

! $%"&'++<)+0(+7"((0=.'+)"+
)-/'+-+;'602.'+%7+)60(+
901"#+#"-*+)"+-+(9-..+
7-#/01&+-#'-3

! G)+)6'+)"7+"!+)6'+#"-*:+2#"((+)6'+
#-0.,-5+)#-2/+V,0)6+2-#'X:+!"#+-+
&""*+;0',+"!+)60(+%1%(%-.+
,-)'#!-..3

Overnight around Betws-y-Coed
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1 Day 5
Date………………………..….

A day of mountains, geology, slate and a castle built from the 
wealth of slate.

Approximate miles  = 55                           Today's map number - 445

Leave Betws-y-Coed west on the A5 road.

Llyn Ogwen ("hleen-og-wen")
! This is about 9 miles northwest of Betws-y-Coed, on the A5 road, at 

660605.
! It is a desolate lake, about 1 mile long and never more than 10 feet 

deep.
! It is dominated by the mountains of Carnedd Dafydd ("car-neth-dav-

eth") and Carnedd Llewelyn ("car-neth-hlee-wel-een") to the north 
(right), and more particularly Tryfan, Glyder Fach and Glyder Fawr to 
the south (left).

! Carnedd Dafydd and Carnedd Llewelyn are part of the largest 
area of high ground in Wales, which has six summits over 
3,000 feet.  They are named after two Welsh Princes.

! Tryfan is the nearest major summit to a main road in 
Snowdonia, being only 0·5 mile from the A5 road.  It is a 
particularly rugged mountain.

! The mountains to the south make this a favourite area for mountain 
walking and climbing.

! At the western end, the waters cascade down the Benglog Falls into the 
Ogwen River.

Llyn Idwal walks ("hleen-eed-wal")
! >60(+()-#)(+-)+)6'+7-#/01&+-#'-+

-)+)6'+,'()+'1*+"!+T.51+[&,'1:
Y%()+"!!+)6'+GH+#"-*:+-)+KJIKLJ3

! <)+&"'(+)"+-+*#-9-)02+2"##0':+20#^%'+"#+2,9+VW2""9 WX:+,6026+0(+(-0*+)"+
='+)6'+9"()+-22'((0=.'+01+?#0)-013

! G+20#^%'+0(+-1+-9760)6'-)#'+-)+)6'+)"7+"!+-+&.-20-)'*+;-..'53++<)+
6-(+1")+=''1+(2"%#'*+-(+9%26+-(+!%#)6'#+*",1+)6'+;-..'5+
='2-%('+"!+.'((+&.-20-.+9";'9'1)+-1*+*'=#0(3

! <1+BCEB:+A6-#.'(+4-#,01+;0(0)'*+T.51+<*,-.+,0)6+-+!#0'1*3++?")6+!-0.'*+
)"+#'2"&10('+)6'+1",@-22'7)'*+(0&1(+"!+&.-20-.+'#"(0"13++4-#,01+.-)'#+
#'-.0('*+,6-)+6'+6-*+90(('*:+=%)+60(+!#0'1*+1';'#+-22'7)'*+)6'+';0*'12'3

! <*,-.+,-(+)6'+%12.'+"!+T.5,'.51+)6'+Z#'-)3++G22"#*01&+)"+.'&'1*:+6'+
,-(+*#",1'*+6'#'+-(+-+260.*+=5+-+Y'-."%(+#'.-)0;':+-(+<*,-.+,-(+2.';'#+
-1*+&""*@.""/01&3

continued......
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E).+5 (continued)

Llyn Idwal walks (continued)

! Walk 1  
! >60(+0(+-+B+90.'+#')%#1+,-./+)"+

T.51+<*,-.3++<)+-(2'1*(+NEL+
!'')3

! 8-./+)"+)6'+.'!)+"!+)6'+7%=.02+)"0.')(+-."1&+-+,'..@2"1()#%2)'*+
#"2/+7-)6:+,6026+&"'(+-..+)6'+,-5+)":+-1*+9"()+"!+)6'+,-5+
-#"%1*:+T.51+<*,-.3++<&1"#'+)6'+7-)6+)"+)6'+#0&6):+-!)'#+-="%)+
EL+5-#*(3

! >6'+,-./+0(+,0)601+)6'+A,9+<*,-.+Q-)%#'+S'('#;':+,6'#'+#-#'+
7.-1)(+-#'+7#'('#;'*3++_P7'#09'1)(+-#'+2-##0'*+"%):+)"+)'()+6",
2"."10(-)0"1+"!+)6'+7.-1)(+0(+-!!'2)'*+=5+(6''73

! G."1&+)6'+7-)6:+-1*+-)+)6'+.-/':+)6'#'+-#'+2"%1).'((+'P-97.'(+
"!+#"2/(+,0)6+()#0-)0"1(3++>6'('+,'#'+7#"*%2'*+=5+#"2/(+,0)601+
-+&.-20'#+='01&+*#-&&'*+-2#"((+")6'#+#"2/(+@+(2#-)2601&+)6'+
&#"";'(+V()#0-)0"1(X3

! >6'#'+-#'+;0',(+*",1+)6'+[&,'1+;-..'5:+)6#"%&6+Q-1)+
\!#-12"1+R-((+V(''+1'P)+7-&'X3++>6'+;-..'5+,-(+(2"%#'*+"%)+=5+
-+9-((0;'+2"9=01'*+&.-20'#+!#"9+T.51+<*,-.+-1*+T.51+[&,'13

! G)+)6'+.-/':+)6'#'+-#'+9-15+9"#-01'(+@+9"%1*(+"!+#"2/(+-1*+
*'=#0(+)6-)+6-;'+=''1+*%97'*+=5+)6'+#'2'*01&+&.-20'#3

! T-)'#-.+9"#-01'(+-#'+-."1&+)6'+(0*'+"!+)6'+&.-20-.+;-..'53
! >6'#'+0(+-+9-((0;'+)'#901-.+9"#-01':+,6026+=."2/(+

)6'+'1*+"!+)6'+;-..'5+-1*+!"#9(+)6'+.-/'3
! >6'#'+-#'+9-15+'P-97.'(+"!+7'#26'*+#"2/(:+,6026+6-;'+(097.5

=''1+*%97'*+=5+)6'+#'2'*01&+&.-20'#3
! >6'+.-/'+0(+%7+)"+EH+!'')+*''7:+=%)+0(+&'1'#-..5+"1.5+-="%)+BL+

!'')+01+*'7)6:+-1*+;'#5+(6-..",+-)+)6'+("%)6'#1+'1*3
! >6'+-1&.'*+O<*,-.+$.-=(O:+-=";'+)6'+("%)6'-()+'1*+"!+)6'+.-/':+

-#'+-+!-;"%#0)'+7.-2'+!"#+#"2/@2.09='#(3
! >6'+4';0.O(+`0)26'1:+60&6+-=";'+)6'+("%)6,'()+'1*+"!+)6'+.-/':+

0(+-+7-#)02%.-#.5+7"7%.-#+-#'-+!"#+9"%1)-01+,-./01&3
! Walk 2  

! >60(+0(+-+N+90.'(+.""7+,-./+
-#"%1*+T.51+<*,-.3++<)+-(2'1*(+
-+!%#)6'#+HNL+!''):+01;".;01&+
("9'+()''7+2.-9='#01&:+-1*+
1'&")0-)01&+-+)%9=.01&+()#'-93

! <)+0(+7"((0=.'+)"+,-./+-#"%1*+T.51+<*,-.+01+'0)6'#+*0#'2)0"13
! A."2/,0('+0(+-+()'-*0'#+-(2'1)+-)+)6'+("%)6+"!+)6'+.-/'3
! G1)0@2."2/,0('+0(+-+()''7'#+-(2'1)+V,6026+0(+7"((0=.5+

(-!'#X:+-1*+0(+2"1(0*'#'*+)"+7#";0*'+-+='))'#+-(7'2)+
!"#+;0',(3++>60(+0(+)6'+(%&&'()'*+*0#'2)0"13

! A#"((+)6'+(9-..+=#0*&':+-1*+)6'1+/''7+)"+)6'+7-)6:+,6026+0(+1'P)+)"
)6'+7'==.'+='-263++R-((+)6#"%&6+)6'+&-)'+-)+)6'+'1*+"!+)6'+='-263

! >6'+7-)6+&"'(+-."1&+)6'+,'()+(0*'+"!+)6'+.-/':+-1*+)6'1+2.09=(+%7
)6'+("%)6'#1+'1*+"!+)6'+-9760)6'-)#'+-9"1&()+"!+9-((0;'+#"2/(3

! >6'#'+-#'+'P2'..'1)+;0',(+!#"9+6'#':+";'#+)6'+.-/'+@+
)",-#*(+)6'+9-((0;'+9"%1)-01(+)"+)6'+1"#)63

! <)+)6'1+#')%#1(+-."1&+)6'+'-()+(0*'+"!+)6'+.-/'+@+=-2/+)"+)6'+
(9-..+=#0*&'3

continued......
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E).+5 (continued)

Nant Ffrancon Pass ("nant-fran-kon")
! This starts at the western end of Llyn Ogwen, at 645610.
! At one time, this was the most dreaded pass in north Wales, being used 

as a drovers' track for cattle from Anglesey.
! In 1792, Lord Penrhyn ("pen-reen") constructed a road to replace the 

drovers' track.  This is now a narrow lane on the west side of the valley.
! In 1802, a toll road was opened on the east side of the valley, but its 

steep gradient was still a problem for stagecoaches.
! In 1815, Thomas Telford completed the new A5 road, which ran from 

London to Holyhead, on Anglesey.  It replaced the toll road.
! It was designed to have a maximum gradient of 1:22, with 

stagecoaches in mind.

Bethesda ("beth-es-da")
! This is about 2 miles north of Nant Ffrancon Pass, at 625665.
! It is a typical slate quarrying town, with spoil heaps to the southwest.
! In 1765, Lord Penrhyn organised some small quarries into one large 

site, and linked them with a new railway to Port Penrhyn, which is 
about 5 miles to the north, at Bangor.

! The original village started to grow, but Lord Penrhyn would not allow 
hostelries on his land, so all the pubs are close together near the town 
centre.

! Penrhyn Slate Quarry  
! This is southwest of the A5 road.
! Quarrying started here in 1765, and is the world's largest slate 

quarry.
! It is 1,200 ft deep covering 560 acres, providing exceptionally 

good quality slate of varying colours.
! It is still a working quarry and not open to the public.

! Three Year Strike / Penrhyn Lockout  
! From November 1900 until November 1903, there 

was a dispute with the owner - Lord Penrhyn - who 
refused to negotiate with the quarrymen through an 
intermediary.  2,800 men went on strike.

! In 1901, about 500 men returned to work, causing 
much resentment in the community.

! At the end of the strike, only 1,000 men had jobs in 
the quarry.

! Resentment against the strike-breakers and Lord 
Penrhyn continued for decades.

! It was one of the events which led to the formation of 
the British Trade Union Movement.

Penrhyn Castle ("pen-reen")
! The entrance to this is about 3 

miles northwest of Bethesda, 
near Bangor, just off the A5 
road, at 597710.

continued......
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E).+5 (continued)

Penrhyn Castle (continued)
! It was the home of Lords of Penrhyn and their Pennant family.  The 

family had made a fortune from Jamaican sugar and the slave trade, but 
mostly from slate quarrying.

! George Hay Dawkins (1764-1840) had inherited the wealth and 

title from his cousin, Richard Pennant - 1st Baron Penrhyn (1739-
1808).  He also changed his surname to Dawkins-Pennant.

! It was built between 1820 and 1837 in a superb position, overlooking 
the Menai Strait and the Snowdonia mountains.

! In the late-1700s, Richard Pennant had built a pseudo-Gothic 
castle on this site - the present castle enlarged and enhanced 
the original.  A previous chapel in the grounds was moved into
the new castle.

! The architect, Thomas Hopper, was employed for about 22 
years to design the castle and much of its furniture.

! The general appearance is of pseudo-Norman architecture.  However, it
is excessively elaborate with crenellated walls and tall towers, and was 
clearly intended to impress.

! Intricate stone and wood carvings are a major feature, together
with astounding plaster ceilings.

! There are complex stone carvings on the spectacular Grand 
Staircase, which took 10 years to build.

! There are beautiful stained glass windows, handmade 
wallpapers, and one of the best collections of paintings in 
Wales, with works by Gainsborough, Canaletto and 
Rembrandt.

! A bed made of slate, weighing 1 ton, was made especially for Queen 
Victoria, but she declined to use it, as it looked as if it should be in a 
churchyard.

! The State Bedroom was used by Queen Victoria, and contains 
a massive carved oak bed.

! There are Victorian kitchens, and all the associated rooms.
! There is a large collection of dolls, and an industrial railway museum.

! There are 45 acres of grounds 
with specimen plants from 
around the world, and a formal,
terraced and walled Oower 
garden.

! This is a National Trust property and opening times should be checked 
on 01248 371337.  It is open daily, except for Tuesdays.  The grounds 
are open from 11 am, and the castle from 12 noon.

Llanberis
! 1>?#P  As there is much to see at Llanberis, the features have been 

divided between two days - see also Day 4.
! It is about 8 miles southwest of Penrhyn Castle, on the A4086 road, at 

580600.

continued......
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E).+5 (continued)

Llanberis (continued)

! Dolbadarn Castle   ("dol-bad-arn")
! This is accessed from a

parking area, which is 
about 300 yards along 
the road opposite the 
Snowdon Mountain 
Railway station.

! [1+)6'+"77"(0)'+(0*'+"!+)6'+#"-*+!#"9+)6'+7-#/01&+-#'-:+)6'#'+
0(+-+KLL+5-#*+#')%#1+7-)6+)"+)6'+2-().'3

! It is the ruin of a 1200s castle built by Llywelyn the Great on a
rocky outcrop between Llyn Peris and Llyn Padarn.

! The round tower - almost the only remaining part - is 40 feet 
high, and about 40 feet in diameter.

! In 1255, in the Battle of Bryn Derwin ("breen-der-win"), 

Llywelyn the Last defeated his two brothers, Dafydd ("dav-
uth") and Owain.  Owain was held prisoner on the upper Ooor 
of the castle for 22 years.

! In 1283, Llywelyn the Last's brother, Dafydd attempted to 
hold the castle against the troops of Edward I, but failed.

! By 1285, it had been abandoned, and most of the outer 
buildings fell into disrepair.

! In 1403-1404, the Welsh rebelled against the English, under 
Owain Glyndwr.  The tower may have been used to hold 
English prisoners.

! Padarn Country Park  
! This is about 0·5 mile north of Dolbadarn Castle - across the 

embankment of Llyn Peris dam, and then turn left.
! It has 800 acres of landscaping, which has been created since 

Dinorwic Quarry closed.
! There are various old quarry buildings, and a restored quarry-

incline with working trucks.

! Welsh Slate Museum  
! This is an excellent living museum, telling the story 

of slate in Wales.
! It is in the old workshops of Dinorwic Quarry, with 

much of the original machinery.
! There is an excellent 3-D audio-visual presentation 

about slate quarrying in the area.
! There are demonstrations by a slate-splitter, carpenter

and blacksmith.
! It has the largest working 

waterwheel in mainland Britain.
! The Chief Engineer's house is 

displayed as if it is 1910-1920.

! There is a row of four slate miners' cottages, which 

were removed from Tanygrisiau ("tan-uh-gris-ee-iy") 
and rebuilt here.

! Number 4 is an education centre about the 
reconstruction.

! Numbers 3, 2 and 1 have been rebuilt in the 
styles of 1861, 1901 and 1969 respectively.

! It is free to visit.

continued......
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Llanberis (continued)

! Padarn Country Park   (continued)

! Llanberis Lake Railway  
! The station is just 

east of the A4086 
road, at the 
southeast end of 
Llanberis, and on 
the opposite side 
of Lake Padarn.

! See the section 'Narrow Gauge Railways', on page 17,
for some details about this railway.

! Quarry Hospital Museum  
! >60(+()-#)(+!#"9+

)6'+T.-1='#0(+
T-/'+S-0.,-5+@+
!"..",01&+)6'+#'*+
!"")7#01)(+%7+-+
(6"#)+012.01'3

! <)+0(+-+LMDH+90.'+,-./+)6#"%&6+,""*(:+7-()+-1+".*+
^%-##5:+-1*+)"+-1+".*+6"(70)-.3++<)+-(2'1*(+1'-#.5+BLL+
!'')3+

! \#"9+)6'+012.01':+)6'+,-./+2"1)01%'(+-."1&+-+
#'-("1-=.5+.';'.+^%-##5+#"-*+7-()+a0;0-1+b%-##5:+
,0)6+-+)#%2/+(%(7'1*'*+-=";'+)6'+,-)'#3++>6'+^%-##5+
0(+1",+%('*+!"#+(%=+-^%-+*0;01&3

! >6'+b%-##5+]"(70)-.+0(+'^%077'*+-(+01+)6'+.-)'@BCLL(3
! >6'#'+0(+-+&""*+;0',+-2#"((+)6'+'1*+"!+T.51+R-*-#1+

)",-#*(+$1",*"13

Overnight around Betws-y-Coed

Copyright © 2004 - 2022 itforit.com.  All Rights Reserved



44

1 Day 6
Date………………………..….

A good view of Snowdon, followed by the beauty of the 
Nantgwynant valley, and the pretty village of Beddgelert.

Approximate miles  = 50                          Today's map number - 445

Leave Betws-y-Coed west on the A5 road.
At Capel Curig, travel west and south on the A4086 road and A498 road.

Snowdon Viewpoint on the A498 road
! This is about 9 miles southwest 

of Betws-y-Coed, about 1·5 
miles south of the junction of 
the A498 road and A4086 road,
at 658542.

! It provides an excellent view west towards the massive bulk of 

Snowdon, and southwest to Llyn Gwynant ("hleen-goo-ee-nant") and 
the Nantgwynant ("nant-goo-ee-nant") valley of the River Glaslyn 
("glas-leen").

! The view across to Snowdon, encompasses the 3,851 acres, which were
purchased by the National Trust in 1998, following a public appeal.  
The purchased area includes the summit of Snowdon.

! Snowdon  
! At 3,560 feet, it is the second highest mountain in Britain.

! The highest is Ben Nevis in Scotland, at 4,406 feet.
! Its large bulk, which includes other surrounding peaks, is star-

shaped, and is known in welsh as Eryri ("eh-roo-ree"), 
meaning 'abode of eagles', although eagles no longer live here.

! It has about 200 inches of rain each year, and the temperature 
range is from -20ºC in the winter to +30ºC in the summer.

! It is an exceptionally popular mountain to climb - either on 
foot, or using the railway.

! The most popular paths to reach the summit are from 
Llanberis, or by using the Miners' Track and Pyg 
Track (see Day 4).

! About 350,000 people reach the summit each year, of whom 
about 120,000 travel on the railway.  On summer weekends, it 
is very crowded.

! It is the legendary burial place of Rhita ("ree-tah") the giant, 
who was supposedly killed by King Arthur.

Llyn Dinas ("hleen-dee-nas")
! This lake is about 4 miles southwest of the Snowdon Viewpoint on the 

A498 road, at 615495.
! Legend claims that when a young person stands on a particular rock, the

rightful throne of Britain will be found.

continued......
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E).+6 (continued)

Dinas Emrys ("dee-nas-em-rees")
! This rocky outcrop is about 0·5

mile west of the Llyn Dinas, 
beside the A498 road, at 
605492.

! There was a hill fort on this 
rock, which is a dramatic 
natural fortress.  The fort was 
probably built in the early-
1200s.

! According to legend two dragons fought here.  One was red, and the 
other white, as prophesied by Merlin, the wizard.

! It is claimed that the white dragon Oed from the victorious red 
dragon, which then became the symbol for Wales.

! It is also believed that the red dragon was a symbol used by the
Roman Emperor, Trajan, and it continued to be used by the 
Welsh after the Romans had left.

Sygun Copper Mine!("seeh-gin")
! The entrance to this is about 

200 yards west of Dinas Emrys,
on the A498 road, at 604490.

! It is thought the Romans may have mined copper in this area.  This 
mine was worked from the early-1800s until 1903, when the amount of 
copper ore reduced, and there were cheaper sources from abroad.

! It is the site of one of the world's 4rst Ootation plants, which separated 
ore from rock.

! In 1898, Francis and Alexander Elmore patented their invention
of the process at another of their mines, at Dolgellau.

! After the rock and ore was crushed, oil was added.  In a tank of
water, the heavier rock sank to the bottom, but the oil-laden 
ore particles Ooated on the surface.

! In 1983, it was reopened for tours, and in 1988, a small ingot of copper 
from here was presented to Prince Charles.

! This mine also had small amounts of gold, silver and other precious 
metals.

! A self-guided tour goes along two levels of the mine, with lighting and 
sound effects.  There are audio commentaries about how mining was 
carried out by hand.

! There are 183 steps to climb within the mine.
! On leaving the mine, there is a good view along the Nantgwynant 

valley, and of Dinas Emrys, which is opposite the mine (see above).
! An area outside the mine was used as a location for the 1958 4lm !"#$

%&&$'($)"#$*+,)"$-.//+&#00, starring Ingrid Bergman.  It was supposedly 

in China.

continued......
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Craflwyn Hall ("craf-loo-ween")
! The entrance to this is about 500 yards west of the entrance to Sygun 

Copper Mine, on the A498 road, at 600490.

! Estate history  
! In about 1200, Llywelyn the Great owned the land in this area.  

He gave a large amount to Cistercian monks for a monastery.  
They farmed here until the 1536 dissolution of the monasteries.

! After 1536, it became part of an estate of the Meredith family, 
which was descended from Llywelyn the Great.

! The family already owned land around Dolwyddelan 
(see Day 8), and later owned Gwydir Castle (see Day 
2).

! By marriage of Meredith's granddaughter, it passed to the 
family of Morys Jones, who totally re-built the Hall by 1604.

! By the mid-1700s, the Jones family had let the estate to 
tenants.

! By 1872, it had passed through the Jones family to Llywelyn 
England Sydney Parry, who enlarged the 1600s house.  He 
also transformed the hillside into a typical Victorian estate of 
attractive gardens, with rhododendrons and specimen trees.  
He sold the estate in 1895, having only lived in the Hall for a 
short time.

! Over the next 100 years, the estate became neglected and 
overgrown - particularly with rhododendrons. 

! The last owner had won the football pools, and used the estate 
to provide holiday recreation.  His widow sold the estate.

! In 1994, the National Trust purchased it, cleared the undergrowth, 
created paths, repaired buildings, and opened it to the public in 1998.

! Buildings are now used for National Trust of4ces, and the Hall for 
education and accommodation, especially for volunteers.

! >6'#'+-#'+-="%)+J+90.'(+"!+
7-)6(+-#"%1*+)6'+60..(0*'+'()-)':
!"..",01&+5'..",:+&#''1+-1*+#'*
9-#/'#(3

! ]0&6'#+%7+"1+)6'+#'*+7-)6:+)6'#'+-#'+&""*+;0',(+-2#"((+)6'+
Q-1)&,51-1) ;-..'5:+-1*+)"+401-(+_9#5(+V(''+7#';0"%(+7-&'X3

! F"#'+7-)6(+-#'+)"+='+2#'-)'*:+-(+)6'+Q-)0"1-.+>#%()+"7'1(+)6'+
.-1*+)",-#*(+$1",*"13

Beddgelert ("beth-gel-ert")
! This is about 1 mile southwest 

of CraOwyn, at 590482.
! It is at the junction of the River 

Glaslyn and River Colwyn 
("col-ween"), with the 
Snowdon massif to the north.

! It is a quaint and attractive village, with bridges over the two rivers.
! It is also at the junction of A498 road and A4085 road.

continued......
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E).+6 (continued)

Beddgelert (continued)
! Beddgelert means 'Grave of Gelert', and is usually attributed to 

Llywelyn's dog (see below).  However, it is more likely to be named after 
Saint Celert ("kel-ert").

! Llangeller ("hlan-gehler"), in south Wales, has a church 
dedicated to Saint Celert.

! Alfred Edmeades Bestall MBE (1892-1986)  
! He was a writer of S%7'#)+?'-# stories.

! S%7'#)+?'-# was created by Mary Tourtel (1874-1948) 

for the Daily Express newspaper in 1920.  She was the 
Night News Editor's wife, and continued writing and 
illustrating the stories until 1935, when failing eyesight 
prevented her from working.  It was from this time that 
Alfred E Bestall became the writer.

! He had a home in London, but also had a small bungalow here 
from 1956 until he died.

! Of his 273 Rupert Bear stories, many were written and 
illustrated while he lived here.

! The bungalow (named Penlan) is now private, and not open to 
the public.

! Cae Gel is a picnic area across the River Glaslyn footbridge, 
and is in view of Alfred Bestall's one-time study.

! >60(+0(+-+;'#5+7"7%.-#+-#'-+!"#+,-./01&:+7-#)02%.-#.5+-."1&+)6'+=-1/(+"!+
)6'+S0;'#+Z.-(.51+@+"1+'0)6'#+(0*'3

! [1+)6'+,'()+(0*'+@+)6'+(-9'+-(+Z'.'#)O(+Z#-;'+,-./+V(''+='.",X+
@+)6'+7-)6+2"1)01%'(+)6#"%&6+)6'+7-()%#':+)"+Y"01+)6'+GJIC+#"-*3

! [1+)6'+'-()+(0*'+@+-22'(('*+=5+2#"((01&+";'#+)6'+!"")=#0*&'+01+
)6'+;0..-&'+@+)6'+7-)6+2"1)01%'(+)"+)6'+;0..-&'+"!+Q-1)9"#:+
-="%)+N+90.'(+("%)6:+9-/01&+-+J+90.'(+#')%#1+,-./3

! A-#'+9%()+='+)-/'1+-!)'#+-="%)+BMH+90.'(:+,6'#'+)6'+
7-)6+0(+;'#5+#"2/53

! Gelert's Grave walk  
! >60(+()-#)(+!#"9+)6'+

#"-*+=#0*&'+";'#+)6'+
S0;'#+A".,51+01+)6'+
2'1)#'+"!+)6'+;0..-&'3

! <)+0(+-+;'#5+'-(5:+.';'.+
LMH+90.'+#')%#1+,-./:+
='(0*'+)6'+#0;'#:+)"+(''
-+!-9"%(+O&#-;'O3

! \#"9+)6'+#"-*+=#0*&':+!"..",+-+1-##",+.-1'+='),''1+)6'+S0;'#+
A".,51+-1*+-+Q-)0"1-.+>#%()+(6"73++<)+0(+,'..+(0&17"()'*:+-1*+
!"..",(+)6'+#0;'#+=-1/(3

! >6'+Q-)0"1-.+>#%()+(6"7+0(+?,)651+T.5,'.51+VW="" @
)6''1@6.""@'. @''1WX3++4-)01&+!#"9+)6'+BKLL(:+0)+0(+)6'+
".*'()+=%0.*01&+01+)6'+;0..-&'3

! The story  
! T.5,'.51+)6'+Z#'-)+.0;'*+1'-#=5+01+)6'+BNLL(:+-1*+6-*+-

*"&:+1-9'*+Z'.'#)+@+7"((0=.5+-1+<#0(6+8".!6"%1*3
! Z'.'#)+6-*+=''1+.'!)+)"+&%-#*+T.5,'.51O(+("13++86'1+

T.5,'.51+#')%#1'*:+)6'+260.*+,-(+&"1':+-1*+)6'+*"&+
,-(+2";'#'*+01+=.""*3

! T.5,'.51+/0..'*+Z'.'#):+=%)+)6'1+*0(2";'#'*+60(+("1+)"+
='+(-!':+1'-#+)"+-+*'-*+,".!3

continued......
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E).+6 (continued)

Beddgelert (continued)

! Gelert's Grave walk   (continued)

! The truth  
! <)+0(+)6"%&6)+)6-)+-+.-)'@BDLL(+.-1*."#*+"!+)6'+S"5-.+

Z"-)+]")'.+2#'-)'*+)6'+()"#5:+012.%*01&+)6'+&#-;':+)"+
=""()+60(+)#-*'3

! G+."2-.+7"'9+()-)'(:+WR-((+"1:+[+)'1*'#@6'-#)'*:+4#5+
5"%#+'5'(c+Q")+6'#'+-+&#'56"%1*:+?%)+-+.-1*."#*+.0'(3W

! G="%)+NLL+5-#*(+7-()+
)6'+&#-;'+0(+)6'+#%01+"!
?%-#)6+Z,51+VW="" @
-#)6@&,''1 WX+2",(6'*:
2"1)-0101&+-+=#"1d'+
(2%.7)%#'+"!+Z'.'#)3

Aberglaslyn Pass ("ah-ber-glas-leen")
! This is south of the Beddgelert, on the AA498 road, at 595465.
! It is the particularly beautiful valley of the River Glaslyn, with steep, 

wooded sides and rhododendrons.  The cliffs are up to 700 feet high.
! In the 1700s, there was a busy port here, carrying copper ore down the 

River Glaslyn.
! In 1811, about 6 miles downstream, a cob was built across the 

Glaslyn estuary at Porthmadog (see Day 9), to carry the new 
railway.

! After this, the river became silted up, and prevented the tide 
and shipping reaching this area.

! There is an attractive 2 mile journey (4 miles return) along the A498 
road to the bridge, Pont Aberglaslyn.

Overnight around Betws-y-Coed
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1 Day 7
Date………………………..….

A full day of the fascinating history of Conwy, and possibly an 
interesting walk along an old Roman road.

Approximate miles  = 45                            Today's map number - 445

Leave Betws-y-Coed north on the A470 road.

Conwy ("con-wee")
! This is about 12 miles north of 

Betws-y-Coed, at 780775.
! It is a compact, small town, easy 

to visit on foot.
! There is restricted 

parking within the 
walled area of the town, 
and it is suggested to 
park outside the walls.

! The town is designated a World Heritage Site, including Conwy Castle.
! It is a medieval walled town on the Conwy estuary, with a magni4cent 

castle.
! Its wall circuit is one of the most complete in Europe, and one 

of the best in the world.
! The wall is 0M75 mile in length, and was constructed with 21 

towers and 3 double gateways.
! There are two sections of the wall, which can be walked upon -

one on the northeast side, and the other by the castle.
! Between 1172 and 1186, a Cistercian Abbey was built by Llywelyn the 

Great, and the surrounding community developed.
! In 1283, Edward I moved the Abbey to Maenan ("miy-nan"), 

about 7 miles south of Conwy.  The original Conwy building 
became the parish Church of St Mary and All Saints for the 
growing town.

! It is a famous area for mussels, which are still harvested.

! Conwy Castle  
! The main entrance to 

this is very close to 
the three bridges, 
which cross the 
estuary.

! It was constructed by 1,500 workmen, between 1283 and 1287
for Edward I, as part of a series of castles to force the Welsh to
submit to the English.

! He also built the wall around the town.  Only English 
people were allowed to live inside the wall and castle,
although the Welsh were allowed to enter in order to 
trade.

continued......
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E).+Q (continued)

Conwy (continued)

! Conwy Castle   (continued)
! It is in an almost perfect position, high on a rocky headland 

into the estuary.
! Its excellent, natural position meant that the standard 

inner walls (as in other castles) were not required.
! There are high walls, built directly off the rock, and eight 

massive towers.
! In addition to its defence purposes, the castle also had

royal apartments for Edward I.
! When the castle and town wall were built, they were rendered 

and painted white with lime, in order to appear more imposing 
and intimidating to the Welsh.

! Although there is no roof 
now, the castle is in 
remarkably good 
condition, with all its walls
and towers intact.

! It is a rectangular shape, 
with Edward I's Great Hall 
clearly set in the central 
area.

! It is in a commanding and picturesque position, with good 
views from the walls and towers.

! Conwy Suspension Bridge and Toll House  
! This is below Conwy Castle.
! This 1826 suspension bridge of 

Thomas Telford replaced the 
ferry, which had been crossing 
the Conwy estuary for centuries.

! It is 109 yards long, 32 feet 
wide, and was designed with 
crenellated turrets to appear like 
part of the castle.

! It 4nally closed in 1958, when 
the modern road bridge was 
built.

! It was renovated in 1995.

! The Toll House is 
furnished as it would 
have been in 1900.

! The Toll House is a 
National Trust 
property and opening 
times should be 
checked on 01492 
573282.  It is open 
daily from 10 am.

! Railway Bridge  
! This is next to the suspension bridge.
! It was built by Robert Stephenson between 1846 and 1848, and

was considered to be a masterpiece of engineering - having 
tubular box-section steel girders.

! Although it originally had a clear span of 400 feet, in 1899 an 
intermediate pier had to be installed.

continued......
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E).+Q (continued)

Conwy (continued)

! Teapot Museum  
! This is in Castle Street, off a courtyard - on the estuary side.
! The ground Ooor is the commercial enterprise 'Teapot World', 

but on the upper Ooor there is the museum of teapots, and 
some associated wares.

! Tea was introduced to Britain in the mid-1600s, but teapot 
manufacture did not commence until the early-1800s.

! This collection has been growing since the 1960s, covering the 
time when teapots were 4rst manufactured, up to modern times.

! There are over 1,000 items, in all sorts of unusual shapes, sizes
and materials.  Many are rare or unique.

! There are over 400 additional teapots, which are not currently 
on display, because of insuf4cient space.

! Aberconwy House     ("ab-er-con-wee")
! This is on the corner of Castle 

Street and High Street.

! It is an original merchant's house, which is believed to date 
from the 1300s, or possibly the late-1200s.

! Other than the church and the castle, it is the oldest 
building in the town.

! It is one of the oldest houses in Wales.
! It is a rare example of a timbered stone-built 

merchant's house.
! It was built in a very important position - on the corner of the 

two main streets, and opposite a gate through the town wall, 
leading to the quayside.

! During its life, as well as being a merchant's house, it has been 
a temperance hotel (additionally utilising the next two 
buildings in High Street), a coffee house, and a shop.

! The rooms have been furnished to reOect different eras of its 
history.

! This is a National Trust property and opening times should be 
checked on 01492 592246.  It is open daily, except for 
Tuesdays, from 10 am.

continued......
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E).+Q (continued)

Conwy (continued)

! Plas Mawr     ("plas-mowr")
! This is in High Street,

which is off Castle 
Street.

! This 'Great Hall' is 
the best surviving 
Elizabethan town 
house in Britain.

! It was built by the local wealthy merchant and land-developer, 
Robert Wynn (1520-1598), who was from the Wynn family of 
Gwydir Castle (see Day 2).

! It was built in 1576 with a small side entrance to Crown Lane. 
In 1585, a grand gatehouse was built on the High Street side, 
with a courtyard and impressive stone staircase.

! It was renovated in 1997, and has been furnished with items as
if in 1665 - based on an inventory of that date.

! It has superb decorative plasterwork.
! There is a self-guided audio tour of the many interesting rooms.

! The audio tour provides multiple options of extra 
room details, restoration aspects and quizzes.

! It is open daily, except for Mondays.

! Royal Cambrian Academy Art Gallery  
! This is in Crown Lane, just off High Street - behind Plas 

Mawr.
! It concentrates on showing the best of Welsh visual art, from 

old masters to contemporary.
! The displays are ever-changing, and each is well displayed.
! It is open daily, except for Sunday mornings and Mondays.

! Smallest house in Great Britain  
! This is on the quayside, with its 

rear wall being a tower.
! Built in the 1800s as a cottage for 

a 4sherman, it is about 10 feet 
high, 6 feet wide and just over 8 
feet front to back.

! It has a living room downstairs, 
and a bedroom upstairs.

! The last person to live in the 
house - until May 1900 - was over
6 feet tall, and could not stand 
inside.

continued......
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E).+Q (continued)

Bwlch y Ddeufaen Roman Road walk ("boolkh-uh-thoy-viyn")
! >60(+()-#)(+-="%)+HMH+90.'(+("%)6,'()+"!+A"1,5:+-)+)6'+7-#/01&+-#'-+-)+

DNBDBH3
! <)+0(+-+N+90.'(+#')%#1+,-./+-."1&+-+S"9-1+#"-*+)"+("9'+()-1*01&+()"1'(:

-1*+-+&""*+;0',+-2#"((+)6'+F'1-0+$)#-0)+)",-#*(+G1&.'('53++<)+-(2'1*(+
1'-#.5+HL+!'')3

! Regrettably, the area has also been the chosen route for 
electricity pylons.

! \#"9+)6'+7-#/01&+-#'-:+,-./+
,'()+-."1&+)6'+"=;0"%(+)#-2/:+
,6026+0(+7-#)+"!+)6'+".*+S"9-1+
S"-*+!#"9+A-1";0%9:+
)#-;'..01&+NJ+90.'(+)"+
$'&"1)0%9+V$''+4-5+JX3

! A-1";0%9+,-(+-+!"#)+"1+)6'+,'()+=-1/+"!+)6'+S0;'#+A"1,53
! <)+&%-#*'*+-1+097"#)-1)+#0;'#+2#"((01&:+-="%)+JMH+

90.'(+("%)6+"!+A"1,53
! <)+,-(+-.9"()+*0#'2).5+01+.01'+,0)6+)6'+'-()'#1+'1*+"!+

)6'+&'1'#-.+*0#'2)0"1+"!+)60(+#"-*3
! G!)'#+-="%)+LMH+90.':+)6'#'+-#'+),"+.-#&'+()-1*01&+()"1'(+-1*+-)+.'-()+

),"+;'#5+(9-..+"1'(+2."('+)"+)6'+#"-*3
! >6'+U#()+.-#&'+()-1*01&+()"1'+0(+#"%1*'*:+-1*+1'-#.5+BL+!'')+

!#"9+&#"%1*+.';'.3++<)+0(+)6"%&6)+)"+*-)'+!#"9+-="%)+NLLL+?A+
VJ:LLL+5'-#(+-&"X3

! >6'+"#0&01-.+(0&10U2-12'+"!+)6'('+()"1'(+0(+1")+/1",13
! <)+0(+)6"%&6)+)6-)+)6'5+-#'+1")+7-#)+"!+-+()"1'+20#2.':+

-.)6"%&6+)6'#'+-#'+()"1'+20#2.'(+01+)6'+-#'-:+)"&')6'#+
,0)6+=%#0-.+9"%1*(:+26-9='#(:+")6'#+()-1*01&+()"1'(:+
(')).'9'1)(+-1*+'12."(%#'(3++_;0*'1).5:+)60(+,-(+"12'+
-1+097"#)-1)+-#'-3

! A"1)01%'+,-./01&+,'(),-#*(+!"#+-="%)+LMH+90.'+)"+)6'+=#",+"!+)6'+60..:+
-1*+"1+-."1&+)6'+#"-*3

! >6'#'+-#'+&""*+;0',(+!#"9+)60(+;-1)-&'+7"01)+-2#"((+)6'+
F'1-0+$)#-0)+)"+G1&.'('5:+R%!U1+<(.-1*:+-1*+-+.0&6)6"%('+01@
='),''1+"1+R'#26+S"2/3

! R%!U1+<(.-1*+6-*+-+9"1-()02+(')).'9'1)+01+)6'+BBLL(:+
,6026+,-(+7-#)+"!+)6'+9-01+9"1-()'#5+"1+G1&.'('53

! R%!U1+<(.-1*+,-(+-.("+6"9'+)"+9-15+7%!U1(3++>6'0#+
7"7%.-)0"1+,-(+-.9"()+)")-..5+/0..'*+=5+='01&+6%1)'*+
-(+-+*'.02-25:+-1*+=5+-+7.-&%'+"!+#-)(+01+)6'+BCIL(3

! R'#26+S"2/+&-01'*+0)(+.0&6)6"%('+-!)'#+-+(607+(-1/+6'#'
01+BCEB3++<)+6-*+=''1+"1+-+*-5+)#07+!#"9+T0;'#7"".3
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E).+Q (continued)

Road from Bwlch y Ddeufaen to the B5106 road
! From Bwlch y Ddeufaen, simply follow the lane, without taking any 

turnings, and it eventually returns to the B5106 road at Tal-y-Bont.
! There are excellent views across the Conwy valley and estuary.

! After about 2 miles, the obvious rounded hill of Pen-y-Gaer ("pen-uh-

giyr") comes into full view.  It is to the right (southeast), and lower than
the nearby mountain ridge, but has a commanding position over the 
Conwy valley, above the village of Llanbedr-y-cennin ("hlan-bed-ur-
uh-ken-in").

! There was a large Iron Age fort on this hill, with a settlement 
of about 20 dwellings.

! The main entrance faced the west (towards you), and there 
were protective stone walls.

! As there is a saddle of land between the hill and the next 

(higher) hill to the southwest, this was an obvious point for 
attack.  There are two large blockades of 'chevaux-de-frise' 
("shev-oh-duh-freez") facing this saddle.

! The 'chevaux-de-frise' are sections of sharp-pointed, 
angled stones, and were used to hinder the advance of
attacking men, horses or chariots.

! Alternative designs for 'chevaux-de-frise' were 
pointed stakes made from timber or iron.  These were 
either set into the ground, or through barrels at 
various angles, or joined in a row of X-shaped stakes 
on the ground - like a horse.

Overnight around Betws-y-Coed
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1 Day 8
Date………………………..….

A day of history.  A castle guarding the Lledr valley, a tour of 
slate caverns, and a good walk into an old slate mining area.

Approximate miles  = 40                           Today's map numbers - 445+&+478

Leave Betws-y-Coed south and west on the A470 road.

Dolwyddelan Castle ("dol-weeth-el-an")
! This is about 5 miles southwest 

of Betws-y-Coed, on the A470 
road, at 722523.

! It is about 1 mile west 
of the village of 
Dolwyddelan.

! The imposing tower and other remains stand on an isolated rocky knoll,
with excellent views along the valley of the River Lledr.

! It was built between about 1210 and 1240 by Llywelyn the Great, to 
control this strategic valley.

! Later in the 1200s, a curtain wall was added around the keep, to form a 
courtyard.

! In 1283, it fell to the English army of Edward I, who then built a second
tower.  The remnants of that tower still remain - mainly one large wall.

! The square tower - the keep - was restored in the mid-1800s, and it is 
possible to climb up to the battlements for views from all four sides.

! In 1488, it was rented by Meredith (Maredudd ap Ieuan ("mar-ed-eeth-

ap-yoy-an")), a local philanthropic aristocrat, who built a second storey 
on the main tower, and built the local church.

Blaenau Ffestiniog ("bliy-niy-fest-in-ee-og")
! This is about 4 miles 

southwest of Dolwyddelan 
Castle, at 700460.

! It is dominated by massive heaps of slate quarrying waste.
! By the end of the 1800s, the area was producing a third of all 

Welsh slate, and in 1873 was called the 'City of Slate'.
! It is not within Snowdonia National Park, because of its 

unsightliness.

continued......
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E).+R (continued)

Blaenau Ffestiniog (continued)

! Llechwedd Slate Caverns     ("lekh-weth")
! These are north of the 

centre of Blaenau 
Ffestiniog, off the 
A470 road, at 700470.

! Although !"!"#!" does not normally recommend 'attractions', 

this is an interesting place to visit, as it is such a vital part of 
the heritage of this part of Wales.  It is one of the most popular
attractions in Wales.

! On the surface, there is a workshop for converting the large 
rocks of slate into varying sizes for roof slates.  There is a 
'Victorian Village' of various buildings associated with the 
quarrying in the area.  These are all free to enter.

! There are two underground tours available.  Both last about 30 
minutes.

! Miners' Tramway  
! This is a level ride on an electric tram for a few 

hundred yards, along an 1846 system of caverns and 
tunnels within the mountain.  The entire system 
extends for 25 miles.

! A tour guide describes quarrying within the mountain 
- explaining about the teams of men, their duties, 
payment, and risks.

! Deep Mine  
! This starts and 4nishes with a ride on a railway to 

lower depths of the cavern system.
! Visitors are then guided to walk through 10 caverns, 

with a recorded commentary at each one.
! The commentary topics are concerned with the lives 

of the quarry workers.  The social involvement with 
the rest of the community is emphasised with a 
distinct nationalistic Oavour.

! Ffestiniog Railway / Rheilffordd Ffestiniog  
! The station is just south of the A470 road, at 701459.
! See the section 'Narrow Gauge Railways', on page 17, for 

some details about this railway.

Rhosydd Quarry walk ("ros-eeth")
! >60(+()-#)(+-="%)+BMH+90.'(+,'()+"!

?.-'1-%+\!'()010"&:+01+
>-15&#0(0-%:+-)+KCEJHH3

! >-/'+'-26+)%#101&+%760..+
01+)6'+;0..-&':+%1)0.+)6'#'+
0(+-+&-)'+-2#"((+)6'+#"-*:
,0)6+-+7-#/01&+-#'-+"1+
)6'+.'!)3

continued......
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E).+R (continued)

Rhosydd Quarry walk (continued)
! <)+0(+-+#')%#1+,-./+"!+%7+)"+J+90.'(:+)"+(''+-=-1*"1'*+(.-)'+^%-##0'(+-1*+

)6'+-(("20-)'*+=%0.*01&(:+*-)01&+!#"9+)6'+BCHL(3
! G15+7-#)+0(+,"#)6,60.':+=%)+0)+='2"9'(+9"#'+01)'#'()01&+,0)6+

'-26+&-01+01+6'0&6)3++<)+-(2'1*(+-="%)+BLL+!'')+)"+-+#'-("1-=.5+
.';'.+-#'-:+,0)6+-+)")-.+#0('+"!+-="%)+B:LLL+!'')+)"+)6'+)"7+"!+)6'+
^%-##501&+-#'-3

! <)+&"'(+)"+#'9")'+(.-)'+^%-##0'(:+01+-+='-%)0!%.+-#'-:+,0)6+
'P2'..'1)+;0',(+"!+)6'+(%##"%1*01&:+%1(7"0.)+2"%1)#5(0*'3

! \#"9+)6'+7-#/01&+-#'-:+&"+)6#"%&6+)6'+#0&6)+&-)':+)"+&"+%760..+-."1&+-+
,0*'+)#-2/:+,0)6+)6'+()#'-9+"1+5"%#+.'!)3++>60(+0(+-+(6"#):+()''7+2.09=+"!+
-="%)+BLL+!'')+)"+-+#'-("1-=.5+e-)+-#'-3

! >6'#'+0(+-+=#0*&'+-2#"((+)6'+()#'-9+)"+-+(-*.5+1'&.'2)'*+
&-#*'1:+,6026+2"99'9"#-)'(+)6'+(.-)'+^%-##501&+01+)6'+-#'-3

! A"1)01%'+01+)6'+(-9'+*0#'2)0"1:+,0)6+)6'+()#'-9+"1+5"%#+.'!)3
! G="%)+LMH+90.'+!#"9+)6'+7-#/01&+-#'-:+)6'#'+0(+-+(9-..+2.-77'#+=#0*&':+

-2#"((+)6'+()#'-9:+-)+)6'+"%).')+"!+T.51+A,9"#)601+VW6.''1 @2""@9"# @
)601WX3

! G+2.-77'#+=#0*&'+6-(+-+;'#5+=-(02+*'(0&1:+,0)6+;-#501&+
1%9='#(+"!+%7#0&6)(+@+*'7'1*01&+"1+)6'+,0*)6+"!+)6'+,-)'#+)"
='+2#"(('*3++>6'+6"#0d"1)-.+7-#)+"!+)6'+=#0*&'+0(+Y%()+-+(.-=+
"!+#"2/:+,6026+(7-1(+='),''1+),"+%7#0&6)(3

! [1+)6'+.'!)+V,'()X+=-1/+)6'#'+0(+-+#",+"!+".*:+,'..@2"1()#%2)'*+
^%-##5+2"))-&'(3

! [1+)6'+#0&6)+V'-()X+=-1/+)6'#'+-#'+-+!',+#'9-0101&+=%0.*01&(+"!
)6'+A,9"#)601+b%-##53++G)+"1'+)09':+)60(+6-*+'97."5'*+BKH+
%1*'#&#"%1*+,"#/'#(:+-1*+BEC+(%#!-2'+,"#/'#(3

! A"1)01%'+-."1&+)6'+.';'.+)#-2/+)"+)6'+.'!)+V,'()X+"!+T.51+A,9"#)6013
! In places, the disused railway bed can be seen.  It eventually 

led down this side of the mountain.  Previously, the route was 
westward towards Porthmadog.

! R-()+)6'+'1*+"!+T.51+A,9"#)601:+
)6'#'+-#'+)6'+#'9-01(+"!+)6'+
BCKD+26-7'.:+!"#+)6'+2"99%10)5+
"!+)6'+S6"(5**+b%-##5:+,6026+0(+
60&6'#+%7+)6'+)#-2/3++<)+-.("+
('#;'*+-(+-+(26"".+!"#+-..+."2-.+
260.*#'13

! f%()+='!"#'+)6'+)#-2/+()-#)(+)"+#0(':+)6'#'+0(+)6'+S6"(5**+b%-##5
F-1-&'#O(+6"%('+)"+)6'+#0&6):+-9"1&+("9'+)#''(:+-1*+)6'1+-+
;-#0')5+"!+^%-##5+=%0.*01&(+"1+)6'+.'!)3

! $"9'+"!+)6'+=%0.*01&(+='."1&'*+)"+)6'+-*Y-2'1)+
A"1&."&+b%-##5:+-1*+")6'#(+)"+)6'+S6"(5**+b%-##5:+
60&6'#+%7+)6'+)#-2/3++>6'('+=%0.*01&(+,'#'+2"))-&'(:+
()-=.'(:+-1*+-+*#'((01&+(6'*+!"#+)6'+(.-)':+,6026+%('*+
,-)'#+7",'#3++>6'+,-)'#+,-(+=#"%&6)+01+-+26-11'.+
(%77"#)'*+=5+)6'+70..-#(:+,6026+2-1+()0..+='+(''13

continued......

Copyright © 2004 - 2022 itforit.com.  All Rights Reserved



58

E).+R (continued)

Rhosydd Quarry walk!(continued)
! A"1)01%'+%7+)6'+2%#;'*+)#-2/:+

,6026+2.09=(+()''7.5+)"+;-#0"%(+
.';'.(+"!+)6'+S6"(5**+b%-##53++
G="%)+LMDH+90.'+!#"9+)6'+
="))"9+"!+)6'+2%#;'*+)#-2/:+)6'+
)#-2/+='2"9'(+-+!"")7-)6:+
,6026+2"1)01%'(+01)"+)6'+
9"%1)-01(3

! S6"(5**+b%-##5+"12'+'97."5'*+BBK+%1*'#&#"%1*+,"#/'#(:+
-1*+CB+(%#!-2'+,"#/'#(:+-1*+2"1)01%'*+%1)0.+)6'+'-#.5BIJL(3++
T-)'#+01+)6'+BIJL(:+9-15+=%0.*01&(+,'#'+*0(9-1).'*+!"#+)6'+
(.-)'+,-..(3

! [1+)6'+;-#0"%(+.';'.(:+901'+'1)#-12'(+2-1+='+(''1:+)"&')6'#+
,0)6+)6'+".*+#-0.,-5+='*(3++[1'+#-0.,-5+,-(+,'(),-#*(:+,0)6+
-1+012.01'+()''7'#+)6-1+BgB3

! F"()+=%0.*01&(+,'#'+2"12'1)#-)'*+"1+"1'+.';'.:+,0)6+*#'((01&+
(6'*(:+"!U2'(+-1*+-22"99"*-)0"1+!"#+)6'+,"#/'#(+*%#01&+)6'+
,''/:+-(+0)+,-(+(%26+-+#'9")'+-#'-3

Hydro Centre, Ffestiniog Power Station and Stwlan Dam ("stoo-lan")

! This is about 0M5 mile southwest of Tanygrisiau, on the shore of 

Tanygrisiau Reservoir, at 679445.
! Ffestiniog Power Station opened in 1963, and was Britain’s 4rst major 

pumped storage power station.
! It is one of the only two pumped water power stations 

in Britain.  The other is at Llanberis (see Day 4).
! Water from Llyn Stwlan is piped through four concrete tunnels to 

Ffestiniog Power Station, where turbines generate electricity.
! The head of water is about 1,000 feet.
! The water is captured in Tanygrisiau Reservoir, and then 

pumped back to Llyn Stwlan.

! Hydro Centre  
! This has exhibits, models and displays about the Ffestiniog 

Power Station, and the part that electricity plays in our lives.
! There is a good audio-visual presentation about electricity.
! It is free to visit.

! Tour of Ffestiniog Power Station  
! This starts at the Hydro Centre, and visitors are taken to the 

power station by mini-bus.
! The machine hall is seen, and also the generators and turbines, 

which are at lower levels.
! There is a fee for the tour.

! Llyn Stwlan and Stwlan Dam  
! It is possible to drive up the 2 miles of private road to Llyn 

Stwlan, where the Stwlan Dam can be seen.
! There are also good views to the south and west.
! There is a fee for the use of the road.

! The facilities are open from 10 am, excluding Saturdays.
! They are generally open for June, July and August, and during 

some school holidays and bank holidays

Overnight around Betws-y-Coed
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1 Day 9
Date………………………..….

An Italian village today, then a Roman fort, a nuclear power 
station, a poet and a walk - ending at a different town.

Approximate miles  = 70                            Today's map numbers - 445+&+478

Leave Betws-y-Coed west on the A5 road.
At Capel Curig, travel west and south on the A4086 road and A498 road through Beddgelert 
to Tremadog ("tray-mad-og").
At Tremadog, travel southeast on the A487 road.

Porthmadog ("porth-mad-og")
! This is about 1 mile south of Tremadog, at 565385.
! It is the port area of Tremadog, developed by William Alexander 

Maddocks, MP for Lincoln.
! In 1798, he bought land in the area, and believed he could 

build a successful port to connect with Ireland, and thus create 
prosperity for the area and himself.

! He developed the town and built a causeway (cob) across the 
Glaslyn estuary, to create a harbour.

! In 1812, the 1 mile long cob was completed, enclosing 4,500 
acres of salt marsh.  Costing £100,000, it almost ruined 
William Maddocks.

! However, Holyhead on Anglesey was chosen as the 
connecting port for the A5 road to Ireland.

! Despite this, the town prospered, as it became the port for the 
quarries at Blaenau Ffestiniog - exporting slate around the 
world.

! In 1867, although the mainline railway arrived, the town went 
into decline.

! Welsh Highland Railway / Rheilffordd Eryri  
! The station is about 0·75 mile south of the junction of the 

A498 road and the A 487 road, at 567392.
! See the section 'Narrow Gauge Railways', on page 17, for 

some details about this railway.

! Borth-y-Gest   ("borth-uh-gest")
! This is almost part of 

Porthmadog, about 
0·75 mile to the south, 
at 565375.

! It is a quaint, 
Victorian, seaside 
4shing village, set 
around a small natural 
harbour.

! There are good views of the Glaslyn estuary and the Dwyryd 

("doo-ee-reed") estuary from the coast path, southwest of the 
parking area, which is next to the harbour.

! Ffestiniog Railway / Rheilffordd Ffestiniog  
! The station is at the beginning of the causeway of the A470 

road, at 571384.
! See the section 'Narrow Gauge Railways', on page 17, for 

some details about this railway.

continued......
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E).+S (continued)

Portmeirion!("port-may-ree-on")
! This is about 2 miles southeast

of Porthmadog, at 590373.
! It is about 0·75 mile 

south of the A487 
road, and accessed 
from the A487 road at
596384.

! It is a purpose-built, fantasy village in the Italian style.

! 1>?#P  Although it is called a village, it is not a village in the 

normal sense, and there is an entry charge.
! It is open from 9·30am - 5·30pm, and it is recommended to 

arrive early, as it is very popular.
! Most of the buildings are Grade II listed, and the entire area is 

designated for conservation.
! In 1971, it was recognised as a site of architectural and 

historical interest.
! The wealthy Welsh architect, Sir Clough Williams-Ellis (1883-1978), 

built the 'village' between 1926 and 1976.
! He wanted to prove that a romantic village could be built in a 

coastal position, without damaging the environment.
! The name is a combination of words: Port - as it is a coastal location, 

and Meirion ("may-ree-on") - from the county of Meirionnydd ("may-
ree-on-eth").

! Some of the buildings are not complete; some are hotel and self-
catering cottages; parts were reassembled from elsewhere; areas have 
been used as 4lm locations.

! There are many murals, and the buildings 
are painted in attractive, blending colours.

! There are many exotic and rare plants and
trees on the estate, as it is in a very 
sheltered position on the Dwyryd estuary.

! It was used as a location for the cult 1967 
TV series !"#$12+0'&#2.

! Portmeirion Pottery is a world-famous, 
bold style by Susan Williams-Ellis, the 
daughter of Sir Clough Williams-Ellis.  It 
was established in 1960.

! >6'#'+-#'+&""*+,-./(+-."1&+)6'+2"-()-.+
7-)6:+-1*+-.("+"1+)6'+(-1*+01+)6'+)0*-.+
'()%-#5+@+)0*'+7'#90))01&3

Maentwrog ("miyn-too-rog")
! This is about 5 miles northeast of Portmeirion, on the A496 road, at 

665405.
! Much of this village was built by William Edward Oakeley (1831-

1912) in the late-1800s, after he had inherited the family estate and slate
quarrying business in 1868.

! His home is on the opposite side of the A487 road, at 655405, 
and is now a study centre.  The quarry closed in 1971.

! There are many stone cottages stepped up the hillsides, like an alpine 
village.  In early summer, it is particularly attractive with good displays 
of rhododendrons.

continued......
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E).+S (continued)

Maentwrog (continued)

! Church of St Twrog   ("too-rog")
! St Twrog was a saint from Brittany, who lived in the 500s AD.
! The entrance to the church is just uphill from The Grapes 

Hotel, on the same side of the road.
! The large timber lychgate, with inset slate panels, was built in 

1897, to commemorate 60 years of Queen Victoria’s reign.
! The churchyard has several very old yew trees - up to 1,300 

years old.
! Pagans believed that the evergreen yew tree was a 

sign of immortality.

! Maen Twrog  
! This is an upright stone, between the main church 

entrance and the belfry door.
! The name means 'Twrog's stone'.

! Twrog is reputed to have hurled the stone from the 

top of Moelwyn ("mo-el-ween"), which is 3 miles 
north, to destroy a pagan altar in this valley.  His 
4nger-prints are thought to be evident.

! It is likely to be a boulder left by a glacier.
! Although there has been a church on this site for many 

centuries, this building dates mostly from 1896 - mainly paid 
for by William Oakeley.

! At the time of re-building, the dedication was 
changed from St Mary to St Twrog.

! The roof is supported by 10 timber pillars, and there are some 
4ne carving by William Oakeley's wife, Mary.

! Below the roof-line, around the nave, there are 24 unusual 
painted panels.  In the chancel, there are eight panels 
containing the Beatitudes.

Tomen-y-Mur walk ("tom-en-uh-meer")
! >60(+()-#)(+-="%)+E+90.'(+

("%)6'-()+!#"9+F-'1),#"&:+"1+
-+901"#+#"-*:+-)+DLCECI3

! <)+0(+-1+'-(5+LMH+90.'+,-./+)"+-+(9-..+9"%1*+01+-+2"99-1*01&+7"(0)0"1:+
,6026+7#";0*'(+-1+'P2'..'1)+;0',+"!+9"%1)-01(+)6#"%&6+EKLh:+-1*+-.("+
*",1+)"+T.51+>#-,(!515**+VW6.''1 @)#"#(@;%1@'')6WX+-1*+)6'+#'*%1*-1)+
7",'#+()-)0"13++<)+-(2'1*(+-="%)+DH+!'')3

! T.51+>#-,(!515**+,-(+2#'-)'*+01+BINC:+01+"#*'#+)"+7#";0*'+
,-)'#+!"#+65*#"@'.'2)#02+7",'#3

! >#-,(!515**+R",'#+$)-)0"1+"7'1'*+01+BIKH:+-1*+,-(+?#0)-01i(
U#()+01.-1*+1%2.'-#+7",'#+()-)0"13++<)+2."('*+01+BIIE3

! ?5+BIIH:+IIMIj+"!+0)(+#-*0"-2)0;'+!%'.+6-*+=''1+)-/'1+
)"+$'..-U'.*:+01+A%9=#0-3

! \#"9+)6'+7-#/01&+-#'-:+,-./+-="%)+DL+5-#*(+'-():+-."1&+)6'+#"-*+)"+-+
2-)).'+&#0*:+!#"9+,6'#'+)6'+7-)6+0(+2.'-#.5+9-#/'*+)"+)6'+#0&6)3
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E).+S (continued)

Tomen-y-Mur walk (continued)
! G="%)+DC+G4:+)60(+7"(0)0"1+,-(+*';'."7'*+-(+-+!"#)+=5+)6'+S"9-1(3++G)+

)6-)+)09':+)6'+,-..(+,'#'+)09='#3
! G="%)+BBL+G4:+0)+,-(+#'*%2'*+=5+-="%)+"1'@)60#*+01+-#'-:+=%)+

,0)6+()"1'+,-..(3
! G="%)+BJL+G4:+0)+,-(+-=-1*"1'*3

! >6'+!"#)+&#"%1*+'P)'1*'*+-="%)+BEL+5-#*(+("%)6+-1*+BDL+5-#*(+'-()+@+
)6'+60&6'()+7"01)+='01&+1'-#+)6'+,'()'#1+'1*3

! <)+0(+)6"%&6)+)"+6-;'+=''1+-1+097"#)-1):+=%)+0(".-)'*+"%)7"()3
! f%()+7-()+)6'+2-)).'+&#0*:+)"+)6'+("%)6+"!+)6'+='1*+01+)6'+#"-*:+)6'#'+0(+

)6"%&6)+)"+6-;'+=''1+-1+-9760)6'-)#'3++>6'+#'9-01(+2-1+='+2.'-#.5+
(''13

! $7"#)(+6'.*+6'#'+,"%.*+6-;'+6'.7'*+)"+#'.0';'+)6'+="#'*"93
! k1!"#)%1-)'.5:+0)+6-(+=''1+*-9-&'*+=5+#"-*+-1*+#-0.,-5+

2"1()#%2)0"1+!"#+-+(.-)'+901'3
! <1+)6'+BBLL(:+)6'+(0)'+,-(+%('*+=5+)6'+Q"#9-1(3

! >6'5+2"1()#%2)'*+)6'+1",@7#"901'1)+(9-..+60..+-(+-+9"))':+"1+
,6026+)6'5+=%0.)+-+(9-..+*'!'1(0;'+=%0.*01&3

! >6'5+7"((0=.5+%('*+)6'+"%)'#+S"9-1+*'!'12'(+)"+2#'-)'+)6'+
=-0.'5+@+)6'+2"%#)5-#*3

Trawsfynydd
! This is about 4 miles south of Tomen-y-Mur, just off the A470 road, at 

707355.

! Hedd Wyn statue   ("heth-ween")
! This is in the village centre.
! Hedd Wyn was born at a hill 

farm near here in 1887, as Ellis 
Humphrey Evans.

! He was a sheep farmer and poet, 
who chose his pen name of Hedd
Wyn - meaning 'white peace'.

! He was called up in 1917 for 

military service, and killed in 
action in August of the same 
year during the 3rd Battle of 
Ypres, at Passchendaele, in 
Flanders.

! The following month, at the Birkenhead National Eisteddfod 

("ay-steth-vod"), he was posthumously awarded the 'Bardic 
Chair' for his poetry.

! The 1992 4lm, -#33$45&, received an Oscar nomination for 

the best foreign language award.
! It concentrated on Hedd Wyn's anguish at being a 

paci4st, whilst wishing to serve his country.
! It contained much local scenery and culture.

Coed-y-Brenin Forest ("co-ed-uh-bre-nin")
! This starts about 4 miles south of Trawsfynydd, with the A470 road 

passing through.
! It is a centre for mountain biking and walking, with many maintained 

paths and trails within the 16,000 acre forest.

! Maesgwyn Visitor Centre   ("miys-goo-een")
! This is about 1 mile south of the start of the forest, just off the 

A470 road, at 715277.
! It has displays about Coed-y-Brenin (King's Forest).

continued......
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E).+S (continued)

Rhaedr Ddu walk ("riy-dr-thee"#
! >60(+()-#)(+-)+-+7-#/01&+-#'-+-="%)+N+

90.'(+("%)6+"!+F-'(&,51+a0(0)"#+A'1)#':+
-)+Z-1..,5*+VW&-1@)6."" @,''*WX:+"1+)6'+
.'!)+V'-()X+"!+)6'+GJDL+#"-*:+-)+DNCNJE3

! <)+0(+-.9"()+"77"(0)'+-+=.-2/:+
2"##%&-)'*+0#"1+26-7'.3

! <)+0(+-+B+90.'+.""7+,-./:+)"+7"((0=.5+)6'+9"()+(7'2)-2%.-#+,-)'#!-..(+01+
8-.'(3++<)+-(2'1*(+-="%)+NHL+!'')3

! \#"9+)6'+7-#/01&+-#'-:+2#"((+)6'+GJDL+#"-*+-1*+&"+7-()+)6'+26-7'.3
! >6'+,-./+9-5+='+)#'-)'*+-(+-+.""7+,-./:+=5+&"01&+%7+)6'+&-)'*+#"-*+)"+

)6'+(0*'+"!+)6'+26-7'.:+"#+=5+2#"((01&+)6'+#"-*+=#0*&'+";'#+)6'+#0;'#:+-1*
,-./01&+%7+)6'+")6'#+(0*'+"!+)6'+#0;'#+@+-1*+)6'1+#')%#1+"1+)6'+"77"(0)'+
#0;'#+=-1/3

! <)+!"..",(+)6'+Z-9.-1+S0;'#+-(+0)+2-(2-*'(+*",1+)6#"%&6+)6'+
A"'*@5@?#'101+\"#'()3

! G!)'#+-="%)+LMDH+90.':+)6'#'+0(+-+!"")=#0*&'+)"+2#"((+!#"9+"1'+(0*'+)"+)6'
")6'#3

! G="%)+LMNH+90.'(+!%#)6'#+"1:+)6'#'+0(+)6'+KH@!"")+,-)'#!-..+"!+S6-'*#+
4*%:+,6026+9'-1(+O?.-2/+8-)'#!-..O3

! O?.-2/O+#'!'#(+)"+)6'+2"."%#+"!+)6'+#"2/(3

Dolgellau ("dol-geth-liy")
! This is about 4 miles south of Ganllwyd, on the A470 road, at 730175.
! See Day 10 for details.

Overnight around Dolgellau
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1 Day 10
Date………………………..….

Wonderful views, the seaside, an abbey and a walk give today 
good variety.

Approximate miles  = 40                           Today's map number - 478

Start the day in Dolgellau

Dolgellau ("dol-geth-liy")
! This is a quaint town, with narrow, winding streets, and small squares - 

the main one being Eldon Square.  Its buildings are all of the typical 
dark grey stone of the area.

! Cadair Idris   ("cad-er-id-ris")
! At 2,927 feet, this mountain towers above the town to the 

south.
! The name means 'chair of Idris'.  According to legend, Idris 

was a giant, who threw stones at Snowdon's giant, Rhita.
! The town dates from pre-Roman times, and has a history of spasmodic 

importance.
! In 1404, it became a seat of the Welsh Parliament, during an 

uprising against English rule, under Owain Glyndwr.
! In the 1600s, it was a centre for the Quakers, but because of 

persecution, many members of religion emigrated to 
Pennsylvania, USA.

! During the 1700s and 1800s, a woollen industry Oourished - 
mainly specialising in Oannel.

! At the end of the 1800s, local copper and gold mines employed
over 500 men.  The Coed-y-Brenin gold mine was worked 
until the 1930s.

! Queen Elizabeth II's gold wedding ring was made 
from local gold.

! Quaker Interpretive Centre  
! This is at the Information Centre, in Eldon Square.
! It has many exhibits about the Quaker movement in the area, 

how they were persecuted, and their emigration to the USA.
! It has free admission.

! Church of St Mary  
! This is behind (north) the Information Centre, which is in 

Eldon Square.
! It dates from 1716, when the town was wealthy from the 

woollen industry and tanning.
! It has most unusual wooden pillars, supporting the wooden, 

barrel roof.  The pillars are large tree trunks, which have been 
made cylindrical near the roof, but are octagonal near the 
bases.

! It has many beautiful stained glass windows.

Leave Dolgellau west from Eldon Square along the street signposted for Towyn and 
Barmouth.  After about 0·25 mile, bear left along a minor road signposted for Cader Idris 
(Cadair Idris).

continued......
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E).+4T (continued)

Road from Dolgellau to Arthog
! This is 7 miles of gated, country lanes.
! It starts from Dolgellau, at 725177, and climbs through beautiful 

countryside below Cadair Idris.
! After about 5·2 miles, turn right (north) at 663136, where it is 

signposted for Cregennan Lakes ("cre-gen-an").
! The road goes past the two 

beautiful Cregennan lakes.
! There are various iron 

age remains in this 
raised valley, such as 
standing stones, a hill 
fort, and ley lines.

! The road then drops down 
steeply, with a good view over 
the Mawddach ("mor-thakh") 
estuary, which is regarded as 
one of the most beautiful river 
valleys in Wales.

! It joins the A493 road about 0·75 mile northeast of Arthog, at 647148.

! 1>?#P  Take care on turning left (southwest) at this junction.

Fairbourne
! This is about 2 miles southwest of Arthog, just off the A493 road, at 

615128.
! It is a seaside resort, with good rail and road connections.

! Fairbourne and Barmouth Steam Railway  
! The station is just to the 

west of the level-
crossing for the mainline
trains.

! See the section 'Narrow 
Gauge Railways', on 
page 17, for some details
about this railway.

! It has 3 miles of sandy beach, which reaches out along a sand and 
pebble bar across the Mawddach estuary.

! The beach is hidden from view, behind a large sea defence 
wall, but there is a good path along the wall, and easy access to
the beach.

! >6'+7-)6+0(+-+&""*+7.-2'+!"#+-1+'-(5:+.';'.+,-./3
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E).+4T (continued)

Fairbourne (continued)
! About 0·5 mile north along the 

beach, is the railway Golf Halt 
of 
'Gorsafawddachaidraigodanhed
dogleddollonpenrhynareurdraet
hceredigion', which claims to 
be the longest place name in 
Britain.  Its translation is, "The 
Mawddach station with its 
dragon's teeth on the northerly 
Penrhyn Drive on the golden 
beach of Cardigan Bay".

! 'Llanfairpwllgwyngyllgogerychwyrndrobwllllantysiliogogo
goch', on Anglesey, is usually accepted as the longest 
genuine place name in Britain.

! F"#'+'-(5+-1*+-))#-2)0;'+,-./01&+0(+-;-0.-=.'+-)+)6'+'1*+"!+)6'+(-1*+-1*
7'==.'+=-#:+-="%)+N+90.'(+1"#)6+"!+\-0#="%#1'3++>6'#'+-#'+&""*+;0',(+"!
?-#9"%)6:+)6'+F-,**-26+'()%-#5:+)6'+(%##"%1*01&+9"%1)-01(+-1*+"%)+
-2#"((+)6'+<#0(6+$'-3

Return northeast along the A493 road towards Dolgellau.

Cymer Abbey ("kum-er")
! This is about 8 miles northeast 

of Fairbourne, at 724195.
! Founded in 1198, the monks of 

this Cistercian Abbey initially 
made a great impact on the area
- preaching, educating and 
reforming the social structure.

! In 1388, records suggest that only 4ve monks lived here, and that 
religious practices had rather faded.

! In 1535, as it was not a very successful abbey, its income was just £51 
per annum.

! In 1537, it closed at the time of the dissolution of monasteries, under 
the orders of Henry VIII.

! Because of its lack of income, the building work was never completed.  
The church was probably intended to be much larger than just a nave.

! The ruins include the remains of the church, chapter house and 
refectory.  There are also the outline walls of other buildings.

! The nearby farm is believed to have been the Abbot's living quarters, 
and accommodation for guests.

continued......
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Precipice Walk
! >60(+()-#)(+-="%)+N+90.'(+1"#)6'-()+"!+

A59'#+G=='5:+-)+-+7-#/01&+-#'-+-)+
DJHNBN3

! <)+0(+-+EMH+90.'(+.""7+,-./:+&0;01&+
,"1*'#!%.+;0',(+"!+)6'+(%##"%1*01&+
2"%1)#5(0*':+012.%*01&+)6'+F-,**-26+
;-..'5:+-1*+)",-#*(+)6'+('-+-)+
?-#9"%)63++>6'+7-)6+0(+%1';'1+01+
7.-2'(:+*'(2'1*01&+-1*+)6'1+-(2'1*01&+
-="%)+HL+!'')3

! <)+0(+-+7'#90((0;'+7-)6+"1+)6'+Q-11-%VW1-1@05WX+_()-)'3++<)+0(+2."('*+
'-26+B()+"!+\'=#%-#5:+)"+'1(%#'+)6-)+0)+*"'(+1")+='2"9'+-+.'&-.+!"")7-)63

! >6'+Q-11-%+_()-)'+-.("+2"1)-01(+)6'+9-1"#+6"%('+"!+Q-11-%+
]-..:+,6026+,-(+=%0.)+01+BDCC3++\"%#+7#';0"%(+6"%('(+6-*+=''1
=%0.)+"1+)6'+(0)':+*-)01&+!#"9+)6'+BBLL(+@+"1'+"!+,6026+
='."1&'*+)"+-+2"%(01+"!+[,-01+Z.51*,#3++<1+9"#'+#'2'1)+5'-#(:
0)+='."1&'*+)"+)6'+,'-.)65+a-%&6-1+!-90.53

! >6'#'+-#'+&""*:+'-(5+*0#'2)0"1(+)"+!"..",:+,6026+#'^%0#'+-.9"()+1"+
'P7.-1-)0"13

! [1+(''01&+-+.-/'+V)"+,6026+5"%+,0..+#')%#1X:+'1(%#'+5"%+/''7+)"+)6'+,-..+
"1+)6'+#0&6)+V1"#)6X:+-1*+!"..",+)6'+!"")7-)6+(0&1+@+)-/01&+5"%+"1)"+)6'+
7#'20702'3

! >6'#'+0(+-+&""*+;0',+"!+)6'+;0..-&'+"!+T.-1!-26#')6+VW6.-1@;-/6 @#')6WX3++
>6'+A6%#26+"!+$)+F-26#')6+VW9-/6 @#')6WX+6-(+-+,'..@7#"7"#)0"1'*+
(70#':+-1*+)6'+;0..-&'+"12'+6-*+2."('+.01/(+)"+)6'+a-%&6-1+!-90.5+"!+
Q-11-%+]-..3

! >6'#'+-#'+'P2'..'1)+;0',(+-2#"((+)6'+F-,*-*-26+;-..'53
! >6'#'+0(+-+&""*+;0',+"!+)6'+;0..-&'+"!+T.-1'..)5*+VW6.-1@')6 @)''*WX:+

-2#"((+)6'+;-..'5+!#"9+4".&'..-%:+-1*+)6'+2."('()+;0..-&'+)"+A,9'#+
G=='53

! [1+#'-2601&+)6'+.-/'l#'('#;"0#+@+T.51+A51,26+VW6.''1 @/''1 @""/6WX+@+
/''7+)"+)6'+.'!)+V,'()X+(0*'3

! >6'+7-)6+)6'1+#')%#1(+)"+)6'+7-#/01&+-#'-3

Overnight around Dolgellau
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1 Day 11
Date………………………..….

Lots to do today, with varied walks, interest in Barmouth, an old 
church and burial chamber, Harlech Castle and Ellis Wynne.

Approximate miles  = 70                          Today's map number - 478

Leave Dolgellau northwest on the A4370 road, and then west on the A496 road at 
Llanelltyd ("hlan-ehl-ted").

Bontddu ("bont-thee")
! This is about 3·5 miles northwest of Dolgellau, on the A496 road, at 

670188.
! In the mid-1800s, this was the centre of the Welsh gold-mining 

industry, with 24 mines in the area.
! The Clogau Gold Mine ("klog-iy") was intensely mined from the 1850s 

to the early-1900s, and produced gold for royal wedding rings until 
recently.

! It is no longer mined, and is not open to the public.

Panorama Walk
! >60(+()-#)(+-="%)+E+90.'(+

("%)6,'()+"!+?"1)**%:+-)+)6'+
7-#/01&+-#'-+-)+KNKBKH3

! <)+0(+)"+)6'+'-()+"!+
?-#9"%)6+2'1)#':+
6-;01&+)%#1'*+"!!+)6'
GJIK+#"-*+-)+
KBIBHK:+%7+
R-1"#-9-+S"-*3

! <)+0(+-+B+90.'+.""7+,-./+,0)6+&""*+;0',(+";'#+)6'+F-,**-26+_()%-#53++<)
-(2'1*(+-="%)+BLL+!'')3

! >6'+()-#)+"!+)6'+,-./+0(+-="%)+JL+5-#*(+*",160..+!#"9+)6'+7-#/01&+-#'-:+
)6#"%&6+-+&-)'3

! <)+0(+,'..+(0&17"()'*+-1*+1''*(+1"+'P7.-1-)0"1+@+'P2'7)+)6-)+)6'+7-)6+
*#"7(+(.0&6).5+='!"#'+-(2'1*01&+)"+-+.""7+-#"%1*+-+.-#&'+#"2/5+"%)2#"73

! \#"9+)6'+#"2/5+"%)2#"7+)6'#'+-#'+%1#0;-..'*+;0',(+-."1&+)6'+
F-,**-26+'()%-#5+-1*+-2#"((+)"+A-*-0#+<*#0(3++>6'+7-1"#-9-+-.("+
.""/(+-2#"((+)"+\-0#="%#1'+-1*+"%)+)"+('-3

Barmouth
! This is about 1 mile west of Panorama Walk, on the A496 road, at 

612160.
! It is at the mouth of the River Mawddach, with a small harbour, and a 2 

mile promenade extending north along a sandy beach to Llanbedr.
! In the mid-1500s, it was noted as a port, with a small amount of trade.
! By the 1700s and 1800s, it had become an important ship-building centre.
! In the 1800s, it became popular with sufferers of scurvy.

! In 1795, it had been discovered that Vitamin C cured scurvy.  
Patients came here to eat a diet containing seaweed, which 
contained much Vitamin C.

! It has continued to be a popular destination for tourists.

continued......
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E).+44 (continued)

Barmouth (continued)

! Mawddach estuary bridge  
! This was built for the 

opening of the 
mainline railway in 
1867, originally 
having a drawbridge at
the Barmouth end.

! About 1900, the drawbridge was replaced with a 90° 
swing bridge, although this is now rarely used.

! It is the only timber railway viaduct operational in Wales, and 
has 113 wooden trestles.

! It is about 1 mile long, and carries the mainline railway and a 
toll footpath, from which there are excellent views of the 
Mawddach estuary and surrounding area.

! Harbour area  
! This is the along the 4rst road to the left, on entering the town 

- it is signposted for 'Promenade'.
! It has some quaint buildings, which explain some history of 

the town.

! Sailors' Institute  
! This is the 4rst building on the right, just past the 

railway bridge.
! It was built in 1890 as a reading room for sailors, and 

is still in daily use, except for Sundays.
! It is one of very few surviving examples of this type 

of meeting room, which were once common around 
the coasts of Britain.  They served visiting sailors and
resident communities.

! It has many newspapers, magazines and novels.  
There are also books about the history of the area.

! It is almost unaltered since it was built, and is run by 
a local charity.

! It has free admission.

! Ty Gwyn   ("tee-gween")
! This is about 40 yards further along the street from 

the Sailors' Institute, on the corner of a side road.
! It is above a commercial establishment.

! Built in the 1460s, it is one of the oldest buildings in 
Barmouth, and was restored in the early-1980s - 
showing off its excellent Tudor timber ceiling.

! It is reputed to have been built by a local man, who 
supported the House of Lancaster, during the Wars of 
the Roses.  It was built in this position to provide 
quick and easy of access to and from the sea, and to 
provide a meeting house for other supporters.

! It is thought that Jasper Tudor hid his nephew, Henry 
Tudor, here, whilst plotting to overthrow Richard III 
(see the 'Brief political history' information on page 
12).

! It now houses an exhibition about the Tudors.
! It has free admission.

continued......
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Barmouth (continued)

! Harbour area   (continued)

! Ty Crwn   ("tee-croon")
! This is about 40 yards up the side street from Ty 

Gwyn.
! Built in 1834, it is a Round House gaol, with its walls 

being 2 feet thick.
! It was intended for short-term use, before the 

offenders were sent to Dolgellau gaol and its Court.  
Drunkards were detained until they were sober.

! The inside is divided into two cells - one for men and 
one for women.

! It was last used in 1861.
! It has free admission.

! Dinas Oleu walk   ("dee-nas-ol-oy")
! >60(+()-#)(+01+)6'+)",1+

2'1)#':+.'-;01&+]0&6+
$)#'')+-)+0)(+1"#)6'#1+
'1*+@+%760..+-."1&+
8-)'#+$)#'')3

! <)+0(+-+B+90.'+#')%#1+,-./:+()''7.5+-(2'1*01&+-="%)+NHL+!''):+)"+
(''+'P2'..'1)+;0',(3

! G!)'#+-="%)+BHL+5-#*(:+)%#1+.'!)+%7+-+#"-*+1-9'*+>-1@5@Z#-0&:+
-1*+)6'1+!"..",+)6'+(9-..+"-/+.'-!+(0&1(+%760..3

! >6'#'+-#'+9-15+)%#101&(+-."1&+)6'+7-)63++]",';'#:+,6'#'+
)6'#'+0(+-+26"02':+(097.5+&"+%7+)6'+()''7'()+7-)6:+1")+7-((01&+
)6#"%&6+-15+&-)'(3

! G="%)+6-.!,-5+%7+)6'+60..:+)6'#'+0(+-+="-#*+&0;01&+01!"#9-)0"1+
-="%)+)6'+-#'-+"!+.-1*:+-1*+)6'+Q-)0"1-.+>#%()3

! <1+BCIH:+)6'('+JMH+-2#'(+='2-9'+)6'+U#()+.-1*+
7#"7'#)5+)"+='+&0;'1+)"+)6'+Q-)0"1-.+>#%()3++>6'5+,'#'
&0;'1+=5+F#(+\-115+>-.="):+,6"+,-(+-+!#0'1*+"!+),"+
"!+)6'+!"%1*'#(+"!+)6'+Q-)0"1-.+>#%()3

! A"1)01%'+%760..+)"+-+('90@20#2%.-#+;0',01&+7.-)!"#9:+,6026+
,-(+=%0.)+01+BIIH+)"+2'.'=#-)'+BLL+5'-#(+"!+)6'+Q-)0"1-.+>#%()3

! <)+0(+2"1(0*'#'*+)"+6-;'+"1'+"!+)6'+='()+7-1"#-9-(+01+
?#0)-01:+='01&+-=.'+)"+(''+("%)6+-."1&+)6'+2"-()+!#"9+
\-0#="%#1':+'-()+01)"+)6'+F-,**-26+'()%-#5:+-1*+
1"#)6+)",-#*(+)6'+9"%1)-01(+"!+)6'+T.'51+VW6.-''1WX+
7'101(%.-3

! <)+0(+7"((0=.'+)"+#')%#1+-."1&+)6'+(-9'+7-)6:+"#+*'(2'1*+*",1+-
()''7'#+7-)6:+!"#901&+-+.""73

! O401-(+[.'%O+9'-1(+OA-().'+"!+T0&6)O3

continued......
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Llanaber ("hlan-ab-er")
! This is about 1·5 miles north of Barmouth, at 599180.

! Church of St Mary  
! This is about 2 miles 

north of Barmouth, 
on the seaward side 
of the A496 road.

! It is best accessed from the parking area at the side of 
the road - just south of the turning to the railway 
station.  Then walk further to the lych gate entrance 
into the churchyard.

! A lych is the old English word for a body.  A
roofed lychgate was a place to rest with the 
cof4n, before a funeral service.

! It is one of the best examples of early English architecture in 
north Wales, being built like a miniature cathedral, in a 
remarkable coastal position.

! A church was established here by St Bodfaen ("bod-viyn") in 

the 500s AD, and in the mid-1800s was still the parish church 
for Barmouth.

! The oldest part of this present church is the smaller, raised east
end, which is built into the rock.  It dates from about 1200.

! The entrance porch is regarded as 
one of the best of its style in 
Wales and England.

! The inside has small north and 
south aisles.  There are massive 
nave pillars, and the clerestory 
(upper storey) has neat lancet 
windows.

! The chancel is considerably 
raised from the nave, and ends 
with one single lancet window in 
beautiful condition.

! Calixtus Stone / Llanaber Stones  
! These are in the north aisle, and are grave stones 

dating from at least the 900s AD - they may date from
the 400s AD.

! The right stone is the Calixtus Stone, and is thought 

to be that of Caelestis ("kiy-les-tis"), King of Mona, 
or King of the Mountains.  It was discovered at a 
farm, being used as a footbridge.

! The stone to its left was also part of a grave, and was 
found on the beach below the church.  It may be part 
of a double grave of two similar-sounding names, 
such as Aeternus.

! Legend claims that smugglers once used table tombs in the 
churchyard to hide their contraband.

continued......
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Dyffryn Burial Chamber ("dee-vreen")
! This is about 3 miles north of 

Llanaber, at Dyffryn Ardudwy 
("dee-vreen-ar-deed-ooee"), at 
588228.

! It is best to park in the small road - Bro Arthur - just off the 
A496 road.  The chamber is along a 200 yard path (400 yards 
return) from the A496 road.

! It is thought that this was a community burial area, dating from 
Neolithic times of 5,000 to 3,900 years ago (3000 BC to 1900 BC).

! There are two raised chamber entrances, surrounded by hundreds of 
boulders.

! Originally, the boulders would have been mounded up to cover the 
entire site.  However, most of the boulders have been removed by grave
robbers, or taken for various constructions.

Harlech ("har-lekh")
! This is about 5 miles north of Dyffryn Burial Chamber, on the A496 

road and B4573 road, at 580312.
! To reach the old town and castle, it is better to approach the 

town on the B4573 road.
! It is a small town, based around one winding street and the castle.
! There are two parking areas in the town - a small one by the castle 

entrance, and another about 300 yards south along the main street.

! Harlech Castle  
! This is in a spectacular, 

commanding position, 
overlooking the 
Tremadog Bay, and the 
Glaslyn estuary.

! It is a World Heritage 
Site.

! It was used as a location for the James Bond 4lm 62'7$8900+.$
:+)"$;'<#.

! The inner walls and towers are almost at their original height, 
and there are panoramic views from the battlements.

! It appears to be almost impregnable, with massive towers, that 
drop to near-vertical cliff faces.

! When it was built, the foot of the rock was at the water's edge.  
Sand has built up since then, and it is now about 0·75 mile from 
the sea.

! It was built by Edward I, as part of his series of castles to force 
the Welsh to submit to the English, soon after the death of 
Llywelyn the Last - in 1282.

! Construction commenced in 1283, and it took 7·5 years to build,
with 950 workmen.  It cost £9,500, which is about £9·5m at 
today's values.

! The outside was originally rendered with a smooth 
surface and whitened.  This made its appearance even 
more imposing.

continued......
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Harlech (continued)

! Harlech Castle   (continued)
! Since being built, it 

has played an 
important part in 
many power struggles
(see the 'Brief 
political history' 
information on page 
12).

! In 1404, Owain Glyndwr captured the castle, when he was 
leading an uprising to take over Wales for the Welsh.

! In 1409, the English re-took the castle, and Owain 
Glyndwr disappeared.

! From 1461 to 1468, during the 'Wars of the Roses', it was held 
by Davydd ap Ivan for the House of Lancaster.

! When asked to surrender he said "I have held a castle 
in France until every Welsh woman has heard of it, I 
will hold this castle in Wales until every old woman 
in France has heard of it". 

! It is thought that this conOict gave rise to the song 
'Men of Harlech'.

! In 1468, the House of York took the castle.
! It was the last castle in Wales to fall to Cromwell, during the 

English Civil War.

Roman Steps walk
! >60(+()-#)(+-="%)+J+90.'(+'-()+"!+

]-#.'26:+-)+)6'+A,9+?526-1+VW/""9 @
=''/6 @-1WX+7-#/01&+-#'-+-)+KJHEBH3

! >6'+&-)'*+901"#+#"-*+-."1&
)6'+G#)#"+;-..'5+!#"9+
T.-1='*#+VW6.-1@='* @%#WX+
V-)+HCHNKCX+0(+;'#5+
-))#-2)0;':+-1*+&"'(+*''7+
01)"+)6'+9"%1)-01(3

! $%"&'++>6'+7-#/01&+-#'-+6-(+-+#'^%'()'*+26-#&'+!"#+%('3
! <)+0(+-+E+90.'(+#')%#1+,-./:+-(2'1*01&+&#-*%-..5+-="%)+B:LLL+!''):+)"+(''+

-120'1)+()'7(+-1*+6-;'+,"1*'#!%.+;0',(3
! >6'+7-)6+2"1)01%'(+)6#"%&6+)6'+S601"&+VW#01@"&WX+9"%1)-01(:+

-1*+-15+-9"%1)+2-1+='+%1*'#)-/'13
! >6'+S601"&+9"%1)-01(+"!!'#+("9'+"!+)6'+='()+,-./01&+01+

?#0)-01:+,0)6+&""*+;0',(+-2#"((+)6'+6'-)6'#@2.-*+(%990)(3
! T'-;'+!#"9+)6'+)"7+"!+)6'+7-#/01&+-#'-+-1*+)%#1+#0&6)3
! Keep to the fence on the right for about 0·25 mile.  The path then 

becomes clear, and ascends through woods.
! G="%)+LMH+90.'+.-)'#:+-!)'#+2#"((01&+-+

;'#5+(9-..+-#26'*+()"1'+=#0*&':+)6'+
OS"9-1+$)'7(O+()-#)3

! >6'+"#0&01+"!+)6'+()'7(+0(+
%12.'-#3

continued......
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Roman Steps walk (continued)
! <)+0(+;'#5+*"%=)!%.+0!+)6'5+,'#'+=%0.)+=5+)6'+S"9-1(3++>6'5+-#'+

1")+';0*'1).5+2"11'2)01&+),"+S"9-1+(0)'(:+-1*+)6'+
,"#/9-1(607+0(+1")+%7+)"+S"9-1+()-1*-#*(3

! >6'5+-#'+9"#'+.0/'.5+)"+='+7-#)+"!+-1+".*+7-2/+6"#('+)#-0.+!#"9+
>#-,(!515**:+-1*+9-5+6-;'+=''1+%('*+=5+901'#(3

! >6'+()'7(+2"1)01%'+!"#+-="%)+B+90.'3
! G)+)6'+)"7+"!+)6'+()'7(:+)6'#'+0(+-+&""*+;0',+-2#"((+)6'+,0*':+7-#).5@

,""*'*+_*'1+;-..'53
! >6'+#')%#1+Y"%#1'5+7#";0*'(+'P2'..'1)+;0',(+-2#"((+)6'+;-..'5(+"!+)6'+

#%&&'*+)'##-01+"!+)6'+S601"&+9"%1)-01(3

Y Lasynys Fawr ("las-ee-nees-vowr")
! This is 3 miles west of the Roman Steps walk parking area, off the 

B4573 road, at 596328.
! It is also about 1·5 miles northeast of Harlech.

! Ellis Wynne (1671-1734)  
! Ellis Wynne was born at this farmhouse, and was related to 

Lord Harlech - coming from a wealthy family.
! He went to Jesus College, Oxford, although there is no 

evidence that he took a degree.  He became the rector of three 
local parishes, and continued to live at the house, which he had
inherited.

! He became one of Wales' foremost prose writers, although he 
only published one book - !"#$=+0+'&0$'($)"#$*>##/+&?$@.23.

! Published in 1703, the book has three sections: Vision
of the world (the world's ills), Vision of death 
(judgement on wrongdoers), Vision of hell (quarrels 
and rebellions).

! The book was written in Welsh, and translated into English.
! He married twice.  His 4rst wife died in childbirth, and the child

died two years later.  He had nine children with his second wife,
and was survived by only four of his children.

! Prior to his death, he paid £200 to secure the living of 
the church for his son as the rector.

! His will was written just one day before he died.  He 
left a total of £1 for all the poor people of Harlech.  His
inventory of goods showed his most valuable items to 
be linen, feather bedding and a horse.

! Y Lasynys Fawr building  
! It is a fascinating insight into a typical farmhouse of the 1600s 

period, and the way in which the building evolved.
! There is evidence that a 1500 building existed on the site.  

However, since the basic existing farmhouse was built in 1600,
many alterations and extensions were carried out, including 
modernisation for the last residents, who left in 1975.  Since 
then, it has been restored to its 1600s exterior and interior.

! It was built into a rocky outcrop, which was higher than the 
water level of the estuary.  Much of the present-day land was a
tidal area at that time.

! Ellis Wynne designed a major extension to the house in 1720 - 
although it contains various anomalies in its construction.  It has 
basic features in many areas of the house, but they are contrasted
with the opulent Georgian room with green panelling.

! The house is a maze of rooms, which lead from one to another,
with various staircases - some rooms are at a higher ground 
level.

! It has Ellis Wynne's fold-away bed - the only one known in 
Wales from that period.

! There is a very interesting guided tour of the house, which lasts about 
75 minutes.  It is usually open from 11·00am to 4·30pm, excluding 
Sundays, but this can vary.

continued......
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Road from Harlech to Cilfor ("kil-vor")
! This is about 7 miles of narrow country lanes, with some gates.
! It provides wonderful views across the estuaries of the Glaslyn and Dwyryd,

towards Portmeirion, Porthmadog and Borth-y-Gest.
! Take the steep road opposite the Castle entrance road in Harlech, at 580312.
! After about 1 mile east of Harlech, turn left (northeast) at a crossroads.

! Follow the lane through the small hamlets of Eisingrug ("ay-sin-greeg") and

Bryn Bwbach ("breen- boo-bakh").
! Join the A496 road at Cilfor, at 622376.

Overnight around Dolgellau
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1 Day 12
Date………………………..….

An attractive walk and quaint places today.  Also the larger 
market town of Machynlleth, with snippets of interesting history.

Approximate miles  = 50                           Today's map numbers - 478+&+495

Leave Dolgellau east on the A470 road.

Nant Maesglase walk+VW905(@&.-(WX
! >60(+()-#)(+-="%)+C+90.'(+'-()+"!+4".&'..-%:+"1+-+(01&.'@)#-2/+.-1'+@+Y%()+

"!!+)6'+GJDL+#"-*:+-)+CJBBHN3
! >6'#'+-#'+;-#0"%(+(9-..+7-#/01&+-#'-(+"1+)6'+&#-((+;'#&'(+

-."1&+)6'+.-1'3++<!+1"1'+"!+)6'('+0(+-;-0.-=.':+)6'#'+0(+-97.'+
7-#/01&+-)+)6'+()-#)+"!+)6'+.-1':+='(0*'+)6'+GJDL+#"-*3

! <)+0(+-+NMNH+90.'(+.""7+,-./:+&#-*%-..5+-(2'1*01&+-="%)+ENL+!''):+01+)6'+
;'#5+-))#-2)0;'+-1*+)5702-.+8'.(6+60..@!-#901&+;-..'5+"!+Q-1)+
F-'(&.-(':+,0)6+-+&""*+,-)'#!-..3++<)+0(+('.*"9+;0(0)'*+=5+)"%#0()(3

! >6'+,-./+()-#)(+-."1&+-+!-#9+)#-2/+"1+)6'+("%)6+(0*'+"!+)6'+.-1':+,6'#'+
)6'#'+0(+-+2.'-#+(0&17"()3

! >6'+F-'(&.-('+,-)'#!-..+2-1+='+(''1+-6'-*:+(.0&6).5+)"+)6'+
#0&6)+V,'()X3++>6'+("%#2'+"!+)6'+F-'(&.-('+0(+"1+)6'+9"%1)-01+
"!+F-'(&.-(':+,6026+0(+!%#)6'#+)"+)6'+#0&6)+V,'()X3

! A"1)01%'+"1+)6'+)#-2/+-."1&+)6'+;-..'5+!"#+-="%)+LMDH+90.':+%1)0.+)6'+'1*
"!+-+,""*'*+-#'-+"1+)6'+.'!)+V'-()X3++A#"((+-+()0.'+1'P)+)"+-+&-)':+-1*+
2"1)01%'+01+)6'+(-9'+*0#'2)0"1+@+)6'+)#-2/+6-;01&+='2"9'+-+7-)63

! G!)'#+-="%)+NLL+5-#*(:+)6'#'+-#'+#%01(+"!+;-#0"%(+".*+(.-)'+
90101&+=%0.*01&(3

! G)+)6'+.-()+=%0.*01&:+,6026+0(+='(0*'+)6'+7-)6:+='-#+"!!+-)+-="%)+JHh+)"+
)6'+#0&6)+V("%)6X:+)"+#'-26+)6'+!-#+V("%)6'#1X+)07+"!+-+2"7('+"!+)#''(3

! G)+)6'+2"7('+"!+)#''(:+2#"((+";'#+)6'+()#'-9:+-1*+&"+#"%1*+)6'+("%)6+"!+
)6'+)#''(3

! A"1)01%'+01+)6'+(-9'+*0#'2)0"1:+'1(%#01&+-1")6'#+2"7('+"!+)#''(+0(+)"+
5"%#+.'!)3++G)+-+&-)',-5:+&"+*",160..+@+/''701&+-+!'12'+)"+5"%#+.'!)3

! >6'+-#'-+1'-#+)6'+'1*+"!+)60(+;-..'5+0(+%('*+!"#+=#''*01&+
76'-(-1)(:+!"#+,01)'#+(6"")01&+(7"#)3

! G!)'#+-="%)+LMNH+90.':+0)+0(+1'2'((-#5+)"+!"#*+)6'+F-'(&.-('+()#'-9+2."('
)"+("9'+".*+=%0.*01&(3

! G!)'#+!"#*01&+)6'+()#'-9:+)%#1+#0&6)+V1"#)6'-()X+-."1&+-+2.'-#+!-#9+)#-2/3
! G!)'#+-="%)+BLL+5-#*(:+'1(%#'+)6-)+)6'+.'!)+V%77'#X+)#-2/+0(+!"..",'*3
! A"1)01%'+!"#+-="%)+LMDH+90.'+-."1&+)6'+)#-2/:+='),''1+("9'+!-#9+

=%0.*01&(+-1*+=-2/+)"+)6'+()-#)+"!+)6'+,-./3
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E).+47 (continued)

Minllyn ("min-hleen")
! This is about 1·5 miles southeast of the start of the Nant Maesglase 

walk, on the A470 road, at 858140.
! In the late-1800s, Edmund Buckley, a wealthy Manchester 

businessman, tried to improve the area by building a railway to revive 
declining markets.  Unfortunately, both ideas failed.

! Edmund Buckley's name lives on at the Buckley Pines Hotel, 
on the A470 road.

! The iron gates of the old railway station are next to the entrance to 

Meirion Mill ("may-ree-on")  - a commercial enterprise.  They were 
originally installed in 1870, and restored in 1973.

! The old railway station in a now private house, just inside the 
gates, but it is obvious where the railway track once ran in 
front of the house.

! Meirion Mill is housed in a building, which was once used in 
the slate industry.

! Pont Minllyn  
! This is to the left of 

the drive to Meirion 
Mill, just after passing 
through the gates.

! Built in the early-
1600s, it is an 
attractive, two-arched 
packhorse bridge over 
the River Dovey.

Mallwyd ("ma-hloo-eed")
! This is about 1 mile south of Minllyn, at the junction of the A458 and 

A470 roads, at 863125.
! The area has a mid-1500s history of brigands and robbers, called 

Gwylliaid Cochion Mawddwy - the Red Raiders of Mawddwy.
! The Brigands Inn is reputed to be where the Red Raiders met.
! In 1554, 80 to 100 of the Red Raiders were captured and 

hanged, seemingly without any trial.
! In 1555, the person responsible for the administration of the 

capture and hangings was killed by some of the still-free gang.

! Church of St Tydecho (  "tee-dekh-oh")
! This is just south of the traf4c 

island, off the A470 road.
! From the parking area, 

just south of the traf4c 
island, walk about 30 
yards south of the 
telephone box, and turn 
left (east) into a narrow 
road.  The steps up to 
the churchyard are 
about 20 yards on the 
right.

! It was founded in 520 AD, and the porch was constructed in 
1641.

! The porch has two large bones set above the entrance.
It is thought they are whale bones, and had been 
discovered near the River Dovey.

continued......
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E).+47 (continued)

Mallwyd (continued)

! Church of St Tydecho   (continued)
! The upper part of the 1640 wooden tower has a Latin 

inscription unusually drilled in large holes - 'SOLIDEO 
SACRUM ANNO CHRISTIMDCXL'.

! The chancel has an unusual barrel roof, and the rear of the 
nave has tiered seating leading up to the organ.

! Camlan   ("kam-lan")
! To the southwest, across the Dovey valley, there is an area 

called Camlan.  There are also two hills and two houses, which
contain the name Camlan.  It is thought by some that this is the
site of the Battle of Camlann in about 537 to 539 AD, when 
King Arthur fought his nephew, Medrawt (or Mawdred), and 
both lost their lives.

! However, there are various other places which are also 
considered to be the site of the Battle of Camlann.

! At one of two other Camlans, north of Mallwyd.
! On the banks of the River Gamlan, east of Barmouth.
! On the banks of the River Cam, Somerset.
! On the banks of the River Camel, Cornwall.
! On Salisbury Plain, Wiltshire.
! At Camelon, Stirlingshire.
! At Goring Gap, on the River Thames.
! At Cadnam, Hampshire.
! At the Roman fort of Camboglanna, now called 

Castlesteads, Cumbria.

Machynlleth ("makh-un-hleth")
! This is about 11 miles southwest of 

Mallwyd on the A487 and A489 roads, at 
745008.

! The name comes from the Welsh 'maen' 
meaning 'stone', and 'cylleth' meaning 
'wetness'.

! In 1291, Edward I granted a market charter 
to the town.

! It is still a market town - having a 
market each Wednesday.

! In 1863, the railway arrived here and many of the old local trades were 
lost.

! The main employment is now on the railway, and in forestry, 
telecommunications, and farming.

! The 4rst Laura Ashley shop was here.

continued......
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E).+47 (continued)

Machynlleth (continued)

! Castlereagh Memorial Clock  
! This is in the centre of the town, and 

stands on the site of the old town hall.
! It is 78 feet high, and was built to 

commemorate the 21st birthday of 
Charles Stewart Vane-Tempest, 
Viscount Castlereagh.

! He was the oldest son and heir to the 5th 

Marquis of Londonderry at Plas 
Machynlleth - see page 82.

! Although Viscount Castlereagh became 21 in 1873, building 
did not start until 1874, in deference to a family bereavement.

! Parliament House  
! This is in Maengwyn 

Street ("miyn-gween"), 
which is the A489 road.

! It is a long, 
low, stone 
building.

! The building may date from about the 1400s to 1500s.
! It was built on, or near, the site of Owain Glyndwr's 

4rst Welsh Parliament in 1404.
! In 1909, it was in a bad state of repair.  David Davies 

MP purchased, and renovated it.
! There are historical displays, documents and books about 

Owain Glyndwr, and how he ruled Wales.  There is also much 
about Welsh life in the 1400s.

! Owain Glyndwr Institute  
! This is to the right of Parliament House - immediately past a 

rounded archway.  It is a two-storey stone and timbered 
building

! In 1909, two cottages were also purchased by David Davies 
MP, and reconstructed as a modern building, but with an 
ancient design.  In 1912, he gave the building to the Council, 
which currently uses it as of4ces.

! Mayor's House / Court House  
! This is at the east end 

of Maengwyn Street.
! The Lord of the Manor 

lived here in the 1600s 
and 1700s.

! Outside, a plaque states '1628IOWEN·PVGHIOUXOR', 
indicating that Owen Pugh and his wife lived here in 1628.

continued......
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E).+47 (continued)

Machynlleth (continued)

! Royal House  
! This is about 200 yards north of the clock tower, on the corner 

of Pen'rallt Street ("pen-rahlt") and Garsiwn Lane ("gar-see-
oon"), and has been a shop.

! It was built in the 1300s, and is the town's oldest building.
! In 1404, during the crowning of Owain Glyndwr as Prince of 

Wales, Dafydd Gam attempted to assassinate him. Dafydd 
Gam was overpowered, and imprisoned here until 1412.

! It is thought that King Charles I stayed here in 1643, as he 
stayed at the 'garrison' - Garsiwn is 'garrison' in Welsh.

! Legend tells that a tunnel once went from here to the River Dovey.

! Museum of Modern Art, Wales (MOMA Wales)  
! This is about 200 yards north of the clock tower, along 

Pen'rallt Street, in a building named 'Y Tabernacl'.
! It is the most important museum for modern art in Wales, and 

is in a modern building next to a converted Wesleyan Chapel.
! The Wesleyan Chapel, was purchased in 1984, 

renovated, and re-opened in 1986 as a centre for the 
performing arts.

! The two buildings are joined together.
! The museum has six exhibition areas, and concentrates on 

modern welsh art.
! The displays are ever-changing, and each is well displayed.
! Each Wednesday, there is talk or performance of some kind.
! Entry is free.

Overnight around Dolgellau
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1 Day 13
Date………………………..….

Legends, alternative technology, a good walk and a Victorian 
seaside resort.

Approximate miles  = 65                          Today's map numbers - 478+&+495

Leave Dolgellau east on the A470 road.  After about 3 miles, turn right (south) onto the 
A487 road.

A487 road
! About 2·5 miles southeast of Dolgellau, there are good views of Tal-y-

Llyn Lake, with the bulk of Cadair Idris to the right (southwest).

King Arthur’s Labyrinth
! This is about 6 miles south of 

Dolgellau, just off the A487 road, at 
750078.

! It is about 0·5 mile west of 

Corris ("co-ris").
! It is part of a complex, which 

incorporates a craft centre and other 
attractions.

! The old slate mine of Braich Goch ("braikh-gokh") has been converted 

to provide a mysterious and dramatic stage for legendary tales.
! Slate was mined here between 1836 and 1970 on various 

different levels.
! Level 6, which originally opened in 1850, is used for this 

attraction.  The higher Level 5 can be seen from Level 6.
! An underground stream has been dammed, and a subterranean boat 

takes visitors along a Oooded tunnel.
! After passing through a waterfall, Welsh legends are told with lights, 

sound and life-size 4gures.
! The legends are from a Welsh book called The Mabinogion ("mab-in-

og-ee-on"), which is a collection of 11 Welsh and Celtic stories from 
between about 300 AD to 1400.

! They particularly relate to King Arthur, Merlin the Wizard, 
Rhita the giant, and the times of Roman occupation.

! Although !"!"#!" does not normally recommend 'attractions', this 

provides an insight to the heritage of legends of Wales.

Centre for Alternative Technology   (C.A.T.)  
! This is about 2 miles south of King Arthur's Labyrinth, just off the 

A487 road, at 753044.
! It was started in 1976 in a disused slate quarry.
! In 7 acres, it houses many exhibits about 'environmentally friendly' and 

sustainable ways of living.
! It has displays about saving energy - using water, wind and solar power,

and has organic gardens.
! It aims to demonstrate and encourage visitors to be aware of different 

ways of living, which will not harm ourselves or our planet.
! The display area is 180 feet above the parking area, and accessed by an 

'eco-friendly' water-powered cliff railway.

continued......
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E).+49 (continued)

Llyn Barfog walk ("hleen-bah-vog")
! >60(+()-#)(+-="%)+C+90.'(+("%)6,'()+"!+)6'+A'1)#'+!"#+G.)'#1-)0;'+

>'261"."&5:+-)+)6'+7-#/01&+-#'-+-)+KJBICK3
! <)+0(+N+90.'(+.""7+,-./:+-(2'1*01&+-="%)+JHL+!''):+,0)6+,"1*'#!%.+;0',(+

-2#"((+)6'+4";'5+'()%-#5:+";'#+)6'+(%##"%1*01&+9"%1)-01(+-1*+)",-#*(+
)6'+('-3

! T'-;'+)6'+7-#/01&+-#'-+-)+)6'+!-#+V("%)6X+'1*:+-1*+!"..",+-+!-#9+)#-2/3
! A"1)01%'+='),''1+)6'+!-#9+=%0.*01&(:+6'-*01&+(.0&6).5+.'!):+-1*+)6'1+

2#"((+-+()0.'+)"+&"+%7+)6'+60..3
! Llyn Barfog  

! >60(+0(+-="%)+B+90.'+!#"9+)6'+7-#/01&+-#'-3
! >6'+1-9'+9'-1(+O='-#*'*+.-/'O:+-(+0)+6-(+9-15+#''*(+-#"%1*+

0)(+'*&'(3
! <)+0(+#'7%)'*+)"+6-;'+=''1+)6'+6"9'+"!+-+9"1()'#+@+.0/'+-+&0-1)+

='-;'#+@+2-..'*+-1+O-!-12O3++`01&+G#)6%#+0(+(%77"('*+)"+6-;'+
/0..'*+0):+-1*+7"((0=.5+)6#",1+0)+01)"+T.51+A-%:+,6026+0(+-="%)+
BL+90.'(+1"#)6'-()3

! 8-./+-."1&+-1+"=;0"%(+)#-2/:+,6026+0(+)"+)6'+#0&6)+V("%)6X:+099'*0-)'.5+
='!"#'+T.51+?-#!"&3

! >6'#'+-#'+'P2'..'1)+;0',(+!#"9+)60(+7-#)+"!+)6'+,-./:+-2#"((+)6'
4";'5+'()%-#53

! Carn March Arthur  +VW/-#1@9-#/6 WX
! >60(+0(+-="%)+JLL+5-#*(+!#"9+T.51+?-#!"&3
! <)+9'-1(+WG#)6%#O(+6"#('O(+6""!W:+-(+)6'+#"2/+6-(+-+9-#/+

(090.-#+)"+-+6"#('O(+6""!@7#01)3
! >6'+6""!@7#01)+6-(+;-#0"%(+'P7.-1-)0"1(:+012.%*01&g

! <)+0(+,6'#'+`01&+G#)6%#+-1*+60(+6"#('+.'-7)+-2#"((+-+
()#'-9:+"#+)6'+'()%-#5:+)"+'(2-7'+!#"9+)6'+$-P"1(3

! <)+0(+,6'#'+`01&+G#)6%#O(+6"#('+()#-01'*+-)+-+#"7':+
,60.()+7%..01&+)6'+-!-12+"%)+"!+T.51+?-#!"&3

! <)+0(+,6'#'+`01&+G#)6%#O(+6"#('+,-(+()-#).'*+=5+)6'+
-!-12:+-1*+.'-7)+=-2/+)"+)60(+#"2/3

! A"1)01%'+7-()+A-#1+F-#26+G#)6%#+!"#+-+!%#)6'#+LMNH+90.'3
! <99'*0-)'.5+7-()+-1+0(".-)'*+2"))-&':+)%#1+#0&6)+V1"#)6X+*",1+-+()''7+

!-#9+)#-2/3
! G)+)6'+!-#9:+)%#1+.'!)+-1*+#')%#1+)"+)6'+7-#/01&+-#'-3
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E).+49 (continued)

Aberdovey / Aberdyfi ("ab-er-duh-vee")
! This is about 2·5 miles 

southwest of the start of the 
Llyn Barfog walk, on the A493 
road, at 615960.

! It is an attractive coastal resort on the north side of the Dovey estuary.
! It was developed in the late-1800s and early-1900s, having a typical 

waterfront, with high buildings along the promenade.
! There are 4 miles of good, sandy beaches between here and 

Towyn / Tywyn (see Day 14), which is to the north.
! It was once a very isolated port,

but one of the most important 
along the Welsh coast - 
shipping slate and wool around 
the world.

! There is a record of an
occasion when 180 
ships were either 
docked, or waiting to 
dock.

! Shipbuilding also 
prospered here.

! Prior to 1808, there was no road to the town, but then a crude road was 
built along the estuary.  The road was re-constructed in 1827, but the 
area only started to develop when the railway arrived in 1865.

! <)+0(+-+7.'-(-1)+7.-2'+)"+,-./+-."1&+)6'+,-)'#!#"1)3

Overnight around Dolgellau
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1 Day 14
Date………………………..….

Today has two walks, some waterfalls, an old castle, and two 
interesting churches.

Approximate miles  = 60                            Today's map numbers - 478+&+495

Leave Dolgellau east on the A470 road.  After about 3 miles, turn right (south) onto the 
A487 road.
After about 4 miles, turn right (west) onto the B4405 road.

Dolgoch Falls walk ("dol-gokh")
! >60(+()-#)(+-="%)+IMH+90.'(+("%)6,'()+"!+

4".&'..-%:+-)+-+7-#/01&+-#'-+-)+KJILJD3
! <)+0(+-="%)+DMH+90.'(+-."1&+)6'+

?JJLH+#"-*3

! <)+0(+-+BMH+90.'(+.""7+,-./:+-(2'1*01&+%7+)"+EHL+!''):+)6#"%&6+,""*.-1*+
)"+(''+;'#5+-))#-2)0;'+,-)'#!-..(3

! <)+&"'(+)"+)6#''+(')(+"!+!-..(+01+)6'+Q-1)+4".@&"26+@+)6'+T",'#+\-..(:+
F0**.'+\-..(+-1*+k77'#+\-..(3

! >6'+7-)6+0(+2.'-#:+-1*+&"'(+7-()+".*+(.-)'+^%-##5+'1)#-12'(3
! >6'#'+-#'+)6#''+=#0*&'(+-2#"((+)6'+Q-1)+4".@&"26:+-1*+)6'+7-)6+

2"1)01%'(+"1+=")6+(0*'(3++>6'#'+-#'+;-#0"%(+2"9=01-)0"1(+"!+,-./(:+
*'7'1*01&+"1+=#0*&'(+='01&+2#"(('*3+

! 4".&"26+$)-)0"1+"1+)6'+>-.5..51+S-0.,-5+0(+Y%()+"!!+)6'+7-)6:+1'-#+)6'+
()-#)+"!+)6'+,-./3

! <)+0(+='.0';'*+)6-)+)6'+7-)6+!"..",(+-1+".*+70.&#09(O+)#-0.+!#"9+
F-2651..')6+)"+)6'+A6%#26+"!+$)+A-*!-1+-)+>",51+l+>5,51+V(''+='.",X3

Towyn / Tywyn ("tow-een", as in the older spelling)
! This is about 4·5 miles southwest of the start of the Dolgoch Falls walk 

on the A493 road, at 585005.
! In the late-1800s, John Corbett constructed many buildings, as he 

expected tourists would Oock to the town.

! John Corbett (1817-1901)  
! He was the son of a canal boat operator, but made a 

fortune from rock salt at Droitwich, Worcestershire.  
He was known as the 'Salt King'.

! He was the MP for Droitwich and mid-Worcestershire.

! About 2 miles northeast of Tywyn, he had a mansion 

at Ynysymaengwyn ("een-ees-ee-miyn-gween").

continued......
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E).+48 (continued)

Towyn / Tywyn (continued)

! Talyllyn Railway Station ("tal-uh-hleen")  
! This is in the east of the 

town, at Wharf Station, just 
off the A493 road, at 585005.

! See the section 'Narrow 
Gauge Railways', on page 17,
for some details about this 
railway.

! The Narrow Gauge Railway 
Museum is also here.

! Church of St Cadfan   ("kad-van")
! This is near the centre of the town, at 588009.
! It was founded by St Cadfan in 516 AD.
! The present church was mainly built between 1050 and 1130.

! Since then, there have been alterations over the 
centuries.  The most signi4cant changes have been to 
the tower, which was completely re-built in 1880s in 
its present central and immense position.

! Cadfan Stone  
! This is in the north aisle, and is claimed to have the 

earliest example of written Welsh on its four sides.
! It is thought to have been inscribed in the 700s AD.
! The inscriptions relate to the deaths of the wives of 

two men, and the grief that was felt.  Two further 
inscriptions at the base give conOicting information, 
stating that three and four lie here.

Leave Towyn / Tywyn northeast on the A493 road.  After about 2·5 miles, turn right onto a 
minor road, at Bryncrug ("breen-krig") (after the turning for the B4405 road).

Craig yr Aderyn / Bird Rock ("krayg-ur-ad-er-een")
! This is about 3 miles northeast of Bryncrug, at 645065.
! It is a rare inland nesting site for cormorants.

! At the time when the Dysynni ("dee-see-nee") valley was a 

tidal estuary, with salt marshes, Bird Rock was an obvious 
cormorant nesting site.  They have continued to nest here, 
although the valley is no longer tidal.

Castell-y-Bere walk ("kast-ehl-uh-beh-ruh")
! >60(+()-#)(+-="%)+N+90.'(+

1"#)6'-()+"!+A#-0&+5#+G*'#51+l+
?0#*+S"2/:+-)+-+7-#/01&+-#'-+-)+
KKCLCK3

! <)+0(+-+L·H+90.'+#')%#1+,-./+!#"9+)6'+7-#/01&+-#'-:+-."1&+-+#'-("1-=.5+
.';'.+7-)6:+)"+(''+)6'+#'9-01(+"!+-1+CLL@5'-#@".*+2-().'3

! <1+BNNB:+T.5,'.51+)6'+Z#'-)+()-#)'*+)"+=%0.*+)60(+2-().'+-(+-+U1-.+
*'!'12'+!"#+)6'+8'.(63

! <)+,-(+,"1*'#!%..5+=%0.)+"1+-+#"2/5+"%)2#"7:+!"..",01&+)6'+2"1)"%#(+"!+
)6'+60..:+-1*+7#";0*01&+&""*+1-)%#-.+*'!'12'(3
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E).+48 (continued)

Castell-y-Bere walk (continued)
! <1+BNCE:+0)+,-(+2-7)%#'*+=5+)6'+_1&.0(6+!"#+`01&+_*,-#*+<3
! In 1294, a Welsh rebellion under Madog ap Llywelyn recaptured the 

castle.  However, the rebellion was short-lived, and the castle was 
abandoned.

! >6'#'+-#'+&""*+#'9-01(+"!+,-..(:+)",'#(+-1*+
-+.-#&'+,'..3

! G+7-#)02%.-#+!'-)%#'+"!+8'.(6+2-().'+
-#260)'2)%#'+0(+)6'+4@(6-7'*+)",'#(+
-)+)6'+1"#)6+-1*+("%)63

! >6'#'+-#'+-.("+*0)26'(+2%)+01)"+)6'+
#"2/3

! >6'+1"#)6+)",'#+9-5+6-;'+6"%('*+-+26-7'.+"1+)6'+%77'#+e""#:+-(+
2-#;'*+()"1',"#/+6-(+=''1+!"%1*+01+)6'+#%==.'3

! >6'+("%)6+)",'#+0(+('7-#-)'*+!#"9+-+*0)26+2%)+01)"+)6'+#"2/:+-1*+
7#"=-=.5+7#";0*'*+.0;01&+-22"99"*-)0"1:+-(+0)+6-*+-+.-)#01'3

! >6'#'+-#'+9-&10U2'1)+;0',(+-."1&+)6'+45(5110+;-..'53
! 86'1+)6'+45(5110+;-..'5+,-(+-+)0*-.+'()%-#5:+0)+,-(+1-;0&-=.'+

-)+.'-()+-(+!-#+-(+)60(+2-().'3

Llanfihangel-y-pennant ("hlan-vee-han-gel-uh-pen-ant")
! This is about 0·25 mile northeast of the parking area for the Castell-y-

Bere walk, at 672088.

! Church of St Michae  $
! This is a quaint small church, dating 

from at least the 1100s.
! In the north wall, there is a lepers' 

window, which is angled towards the 
altar so that lepers could watch the 
service from outside.

! In the vestry, there are two displays.

! Mary Jones  
! Mary Jones was born in 1784, and saved her money 

for 6 years to buy a Welsh Bible.
! In 1800, aged 16, she walked barefoot for 25 miles 

through the mountains to Bala to buy a bible.
! Some Welsh Bibles were due from London, but had 

not arrived.
! Much compassion was shown to her - providing 

accommodation while she waited, and then she was 
given three Bibles for the price of one.

! One Bible was given to a friend, one probably went 
with her son to the USA, and she kept hers until she 
died in 1864.

! This inspiring story was the basis for the foundation 
of the British and Foreign Bible Society in 1804.

! Bro Dysynni Map  
! This is a 3-dimensional map covering a 4 x 14 mile 

area of the Dysynni valley.
! It was completed in 1995, having been created by 18 

people over 2·5 years.

continued......
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Llangelynnin ("hlan-gel-ee-nin")
! This is about 6·5 miles west of Llan4hangel-y-pennant, at 571072.

! After travelling west on the A493 road, the road suddenly 
turns north where it meets the sea.  About 0·7 mile north of 
this bend, there is a parking area (the 4rst parking area) on the 
coast side of the A493 road.

! Church of St Celynnin  !("kel-ee-nin")
! This is set in a 

stunning position on a
steep minor road 
below the A493 road,
on the coast side.

! It is necessary to walk about 50 yards north from the 
parking area, and then about 200 yards down the 
minor road.

! It dates from the 1100s, and is almost un-restored - although a 
small amount of restoration was carried out in 1842.

! The grave of Abram Wood is in the churchyard.  He was the 
'King of the Welsh Gypsies', who died in 1799.

! Hanging on the south 
wall, there is a rare 
double horse bier - a 
carriage for conveying a 
cof4n to the grave.

! The north wall has 
ancient frescoes, which 
were discovered in 1917.

Overnight around Dolgellau
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1 Day 15
Date………………………..….

Leaving Dolgellau today, with a walk, the highest pass in Wales, 
a lake and a whitewater centre.

Approximate miles  = 75                           Today's map numbers - 478,+475+& 445

Leave Dolgellau east on the A470 road.

Torrent Walk
! >60(+()-#)(+-="%)+N+90.'(+'-()+"!+4".&'..-%:+Y%()+"!!+)6'+GJDL+#"-*:+-)+

DKNBCB3
! G)+DKLBDI:+)-/'+)6'+901"#+#"-*+V)6'+?JJBK+#"-*X:+(0&17"()'*+

!"#+?#0)6*0#+VW=#0)6@*''#WX:+-1*+)6'+7-)6+0(+2.'-#.5+9-#/'*+
-="%)+LMNH+90.'+"1+)6'+.'!)3

! <)+0(+-+N+90.'(+#')%#1+,-./:+*'(2'1*01&+-="%)+EHL+!''):+-."1&(0*'+)6'+
S0;'#+A.5,'*"&+VW2.''@,'* @"&WX+)"+9'')+-+901"#+#"-*3++>6'+7-)6+0(+
%1';'1+01+7.-2'(3

! >6'+;0',(+"!+)6'+,-)'#+)%9=.01&+";'#+)6'+#"2/(+-#'+='))'#+"1+)6'+#')%#13
! >6'#'+0(+1")+-+7-#/01&+-#'-+-)+)6'+901"#+#"-*:+-)+)6'+.",'#+'1*+"!+)6'+

,-./3

Dinas Mawddwy ("dee-nas-mow-thoo-ee")
! This is about 6 miles east of the start of Torrent Walk, just off the A470

road, at 858148.
! It is on the River Dovey, dominated by Foel Benddin ("voyl-ben-thin") 

to the north.
! It has a history of lead, and then slate mining.
! The Red Lion Hotel is reputed to have been the place where Henry I's 

illegitimate son, Robert, stayed.  He was a visitor of Helen, who, 
according to legend, lived in the town and was especially beautiful.

Road from Dinas Mawddwy to Llanuwchllyn!("hlan-ee-ookh-hleen")
! Although this narrow road is 

entirely within Snowdonia 
National Park, it is seldom 
visited by tourists, and has a 
remote charm.

! There is a feeling here 
of being amongst the 
peace of the hill-
farming community.

! The 4rst part follows the beautifully glaciated Dovey valley.

! Wooden Cross  
! This is about 6 miles northeast of Dinas Mawddwy, at a road 

junction, at 915229.
! It was placed here in 1989 to replace an old cross.
! For centuries, the pass had been used by pilgrims on their way 

to St David's in south Wales.
! Bwlch y Groes ("boolkh-uh-groys") is the name of this pass, 

meaning 'Pass of the Cross'.

continued......
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Road from Dinas Mawddwy to Llanuwchllyn (continued)

! Bwlch y Groes viewpoint  
! This is about 0·25 mile north of the Wooden Cross, at 914233.
! At 1,791 feet, it is the highest road pass in Wales.
! It provides an excellent view into the impressively glaciated 

Twrch ("toorkh") valley below the viewpoint, then across to 
the Aran mountains.

! Austin, the car manufacturer, tested cars over this pass in the 
1920s and 1930s.

! The second part follows the Twrch valley, which is also known as Cwm

Cynllwyd ("koom-keen-hloo-eed").

! Llanuwchllyn  
! This is about 4·5 miles northwest of Bwlch y Groes viewpoint, 

at 878299.
! It has the south terminus for Bala Lake Railway (see below).

Bala ("ba-lah")
! This is about 5 miles northeast of Llanuwchllyn, at 925360.

! It is at the northeastern end of Bala Lake / Llyn Tegid ("hleen-te-gid"), 

which is the largest lake in Wales.
! The lake is 4 miles long, 0·75 miles wide, and up to 150 feet 

deep.
! It contains 14 species of 4sh including a breed of salmon, 

which is unique to the lake.
! The Welsh equivalent of the Loch Ness Monster is thought to 

be here.  It is called 'Tegi'.
! The 'Bala fault' is a 12 mile rift in the earth's crust, stretching 

from Cadair Idris in the east.  It has Tal-y-Lyn Lake and Bala 
Lake along its length.

! The town of Bala was founded in 1310.
! By the 1600s, it had become a small market town.
! In the late-1700s, it was famous for its woollen industry.
! In 1865, Michael Jones, a local clergyman, went with 150 of 

his followers to Patagonia.  There, he set up a non-conformist 
community, where Welsh is still spoken.

! Rheilffordd Llyn Tegid / Bala Lake Railway  
! The station is about 1 mile 

south of the town centre, at
the junction of the B4391 
road and B4403 road, at 
930350.

! See the section 'Narrow Gauge Railways', on page 17, for 
some details about this railway.

Canolfan Tryweryn ("kan-ol-van-tree-wer-een")
! This is about 3·5 miles 

northwest of Bala, on the 
A4212 road, at 891402.

! It is the National Whitewater 
Centre for Wales, on the 
churning waters of the River 
Tryweryn.

continued......
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Canolfan Tryweryn (continued)
! The River Tryweryn is graded as a 3 to 4, consisting of many pool 

drops.
! The International Grading System for whitewater is 

approximately:
! 1 - Easy - moving water.
! 2 - Novice - small waves, minor obstructions.
! 3 - Intermediate - moderate waves, technical dif4culties.
! 4 - Advanced - intense, powerful rapids.
! 5 - Expert - extremely dif4cult rapids.
! 6 - Extreme - normally impossible rapids.

! The quantity of water in the River Tryweryn is controlled by the Oow 
from the dam of Llyn Celyn (see below).

! It is free to watch the canoeing, kayaking and rafting.

Llyn Celyn ("hleen-kel-in")
! This is about 1 mile northwest of Canolfan Tryweryn, at 860405.
! It was created as a reservoir to provide water for Liverpool, being 

completed in 1965.
! When the valley was Oooded, the village of Capel Celyn ("kap-el-kel-

in") was lost beneath the water, including 12 farms, a chapel and a post 
of4ce.

! The village was well-known for its Quakers in the 1600s and 

1700s at the farm of Hafod Fadog ("hav-od-vad-og").  Many 
emigrated from here to Pennsylvania, USA, to escape 
persecution.

! Memorial Stone  
! This is on the shore of Llyn Celyn, at a parking area on the 

A4212 road, at 875405.
! It commemorates the Quakers of Hafod Fadog.

! Celyn Memorial Chapel  
! This is also on the 

shore of Llyn Celyn, 
about 100 yards south 
of the A4212 road, at 
848413.

! It is about 2 miles west of the Memorial Stone.
! The wall of the graveyard has the original 1893 date-stone 

from Capel Celyn.
! A translation of the notice in the porch:  "Capel Celyn 

Memorial    This building and the memorial garden were 
erected in remembrance of the chapel and cemetery of Capel 
Celyn which are now below the waters of Llyn Celyn".

! In 1943, a Flying Fortress aeroplane crashed into the mountain of 

Arenig Fawr ("ar-en-ig-vowr"), which is 3 miles southwest of the lake.

Overnight around Betws-y-Coed
! This is about 10 miles northwest of Llyn Celyn, at 792567.
! The easiest route is to continue west on the A4212 road to 

Trawsfynydd.  Then turn right (north) on the A470, through Blaenau 
Ffestiniog to Betws-y-Coed.
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1 Day 16
Date………………………..….

Travelling day

! This page may be used to make notes about your travelling 
arrangements for your onward journey.

! At !"!"#!",+we hope you have enjoyed your itinerary, and that you will 

try another.
! If you have any comments about the itinerary (good or bad), please let 

us know.
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